o

COLUMBUS

Rural Nature. Urban Access.

Commercial Pet and
Small Animal Uses

Report:

Study of Commercial Pet and Small Animal
Uses within the City of Columbus

Report Presented to Planning Commission and City Council: March 1, 2023

Prepared For: City of Columbus Planning
Commission & City Council

Staff Prepared: Frank KoenengCity of
Columbus Associate Planher

16319 Kettle River Boulevard, Columbus, MN 55025
651.464.3120 Twin Cities 651.464.5922 Fax

www.ColumbusNMN.com



2

STAFF REPORT

To: City of Columbus Planning Commission and City Council
From: Frank Koenen, Associate Planner
Date: February 24, 2023

Re: Commercial Small Animal/Pet Uses

Background

On December 29, 2021 the City Council adopted Ordinance 21-11 establishing a moratorium on the
issuance of permits for small animal indoor boarding, training, grooming, or daycare within the city,
and Resolution 21-29 to order a study for regulation of pet boarding/grooming. The Ordinance came
into effect on June 23, 2022, upon its publication.

The moratorium was a result of a discussion at the December 1, 2021 Planning Commission meeting
of a potential dog training business in the Highway Commercial zoning district. Dog training was not
listed as a use and the Planning Commission felt the business was not a fit for the area. After the
discussion, the Planning Commission did not feel that the then proposed zoning ordinance adequately
addressed the use and voted to recommend a moratorium on the use.

The City Council at the December 8, 2021 voted to draft a moratorium on pet training and pet
boarding. It was also agreed that as part of the study, there would be additional research regarding pet
day care uses. The pet day care addition to the study was the result of a business earlier in the year
applying for a conditional use permit. The city had previously allowed the business as a commercial
dog kennel which is licensed by the State of Minnesota. However, the business applied as a pet day
care which is not licensed by the state. This required the city to create adequate conditions to ensure
the welfare and safety of the animals.

The City Council at the December 29, 2021 meeting adopted an ordinance for the moratorium on small
animal boarding, training, grooming, and day care. The moratorium went into effect upon publication
on June 23, 2022. The City Council also passed a resolution to conduct a study of the city’s existing
zoning controls and potential amendments to regulation of small animal boarding, training, grooming,
and day care to mitigate potential negative impacts and effects of the establishment or renewal of such
use on the health, safety, and welfare of its citizens and the community.

Policy Questions for Review

1) Which commercial zoning districts should these uses be located?

2) What permitting and license controls should be implemented governing Commercial Pet and
Small Animal Uses that provide enough oversight and regulation of uses?

3) What land use regulations should be implemented for potential nuisances (concerning the
health, safety, and welfare of the community)?



3

Findings of Fact

1.

10.

11.

An ordinance establishing a moratorium on the issuance of permits for commercial pet and
small animals uses within the City of Columbus was adopted by the City of Columbus Council
on December 29, 2021, and went into effect on June 23, 2022.

The study was to investigate the land use districts appropriate for the uses and licensing
procedures and requirements for the commercial small animal and pet uses.

The city currently allows small animal indoor boarding, grooming, or day care, including
ancillary veterinary care in the Community Commercial, General Business, Medium Density
Residential Mixed Use, Mixed Use High Density Residential, and Light Industrial zoning
districts.

The city currently allows small animal indoor boarding, grooming, and day care as an
accessory use of Veterinary clinic or hospitals in the Commercial/Industrial, Community
Commercial, General Business, Light Industrial, Medium Density Residential Mixed Use, and
Mixed Use High Density Residential zoning districts.

The city does not currently allow small animal training in any zoning district.

A business was issued an Interim Use Permit (IUP) in 2012 as a commercial dog kennel when
it was a part of the then Community Retail zoning district. A new owner received a Conditional
Use Permit for the same property in 2021 as an animal day care facility.

Commercial dog kennels are licensed by the Minnesota Board of Animal Health. Commercial
dog kennels are defined by the state as “a facility that accepts impounded, stray, abandoned, or
owner-surrendered cats and dogs. This includes humane societies, rescue organizations and
impound facilities.” State licensing does not apply to training and boarding facilities, animal
day care facilities, or groomers.

The CUP for the business required additional conditions due to the lack of state licensing
requirements of pet day care facilities.

An inquiry for a commercial dog training use was received by the city in late 2021. The
Planning Commission determined that the use was not a fit for the Highway Commercial
zoning district.

In December 2021, the City Council voted to establish a moratorium for Commercial Small
Animal Uses to allow the city to study potential nuisance characteristics and potential negative
impact of the uses. The moratorium went into effect in June 2022, and is set to expire in June
2023.

In early 2023, the City Council expressed concern allowing Commercial Small Animal Uses
due to the city’s available capacity to license of the businesses. It was assumed the city would



have to hire additional staff or consultants to enforce the licensing of Commercial Small
Animal Uses and ensure the safety of the animals.

12. In February 2023, at the direction of the City Council, staff added a “Other Commercial Small
Animal Uses” designation for businesses that uses animals for entertainment or education
purposes (i.e. petting zoos, animal exhibitions) to the definitions studied.

13. Any zoning amendment eliminating animal boarding and day care facilities in all commercial
and industrial districts will create one legal non-conforming use of land in the Community
Commercial zoning district.

14. The Comprehensive Plan designated large areas of commercial use in the I-35 Freeway
Corridor with municipal trunk sewer and water facilities. The highest intensity uses are planned
near the I-35 interchange with Lake Drive (including the Community Commercial and the
Mixed Use zoning districts), the center section is planned for large scale retail uses and service
uses (including General Business the zoning district), while the southern area is planned for
Light Industrial zoning and uses.

15. Most of the animal uses listed require larger areas of land to allow open areas for playing or
training for the animals. The business types are land intensive, but not use intensive.

Staff Observation

Animal boarding businesses are land intensive, but not use intensive which conflicts with the
Comprehensive Plan. The Comprehensive Plan dedicates the three square miles of the I-35 Corridor to
intense or large scale uses near the freeway. The area is the only area of Columbus in which municipal
water and sewer are planned, and the three square miles has limited buildable upland available, making
the developable commercial area more scarce. The animal businesses require adequate space for play
space or training of animals.

The IUP initially granted in 2012 as a Commercial Dog Kennel, which was licensed by the state. The
new business owner applied for a CUP as a small animal indoor boarding and day care due to
additional investment in the property. The city then became the responsible jurisdiction to ensure
animal safety, due to a lack of state licensing for small animal indoor boarding and day care. This
process required many conditions added to the permit. The city did not anticipate the licensing burden
when approving the CUP.

The lack of state licensing for training and boarding facilities, animal day care facilities, and grooming
requires the city to be the licensing authority for the businesses. The city has limited capacity to
enforce compliance with potential licensing requirements. The city lacks the workforce to regularly
inspect additional commercial animal businesses.



Staff Proposed Changes

A. Amendment to Section 7A-201

Staff proposes defining animal training facility, animal boarding facility, animal day care
facility, animal grooming facility, and other animal establishments as separate uses in the Code of
Ordinances.

B. Amendments to Section 7A-663, Section 7A-673, Section 7A-683, Section 7A-723, Section 7A-
733, Section 7A-743, Section 7A-746, Section 7A-809, and Section 7A-812

Staff proposes removing the uses of pet training, pet boarding, pet day care, and other land

intensive pet uses from all commercial and industrial districts in Columbus. Retaining the uses

would require the city to hire additional staff or consultant to ensure compliance for licensing, which is

not currently planned for the city.

Additionally, some of the uses conflict with the Comprehensive Plan’s intention to use the 1-35
Corridor for more intense or large scale uses requiring municipal sewer and water services. The large
areas necessary for animal play space and training animals conflict create uses that are low intensity in
use, but use a high amount of land. The commercial pet uses are not a fit for the uses designated for the
I-35 Corridor in the Comprehensive Plan.

Staff proposes to retain ancillary boarding, grooming, and daycare with Veterinary Animal
Hospital or Clinic uses in the districts in which they already allowed. The use is licensed by the
Minnesota Board of Veterinary Medicine. The existence of state oversight eliminates the necessity of
the city to license the businesses, and therefore would not need to hire additional staff.

Staff proposes that the Planning Commission recommend to the City Council to conduct a public
hearing on the proposed ordinances.

Attachments

Draft Ordinance No. 23-XX: AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 7A OF THE CITY OF
COLUMBUS CODE OF ORDINANCES REGULATING ANIMAL FACILITIES &
HOUSEKEEPING AMENDMENTS

Ordinance No. 21-11: AN INTERIM ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A MORATORIUM ON THE
ISSUANCE OF PERMITS FOR SMALL ANIMAL INDOOR BOARDING, GROOMING, OR DAY
CARE WITHIN THE CITY OF COLUMBUS

Resolution 21-19: RESOLUTION TO ORDER A STUDY FOR REGULATION OF PET
BOARDING/GROOMING

June 2, 2021 Planning Commission Minutes (Muddy Paws CUP Public Hearing)
June 9, 2021 City Council Minutes (Muddy Paws CUP Discussion 1)

June 23, 2021 City Council Minutes (Muddy Paws CUP Discussion 2)

July 14, 2021 City Council Minutes (Muddy Paws CUP Discussion 3)



July 28, 2021 City Council Minutes (Muddy Paws CUP Discussion 4 and motion to approve CUP)

December 1, 2021 Planning Commission Minutes (Motion by Planning Commission to recommend a
study or a review of animal facilities)

December 8, 2021 City Council Minutes (Motion to institute a moratorium on commercial dog kennels
and training facilities)

December 29, 2021 City Council Minutes (Motion to approve Resolution 21-29 and Ordinance 21-11)

November 11, 2022 Staff Memo to Planning Commission and City Council (Pet Boarding/Grooming
Moratorium Study Questions, meeting 1)

November 16, 2022 Planning Commission and City Council Feedback (RE: Pet Boarding/Grooming
Moratorium Study Questions, meeting 1)

January 27, 2023 Staff Memo to Planning Commission (Commercial Pet/Small Animal Uses Study
Review, meeting 2)

February 1, 2023 Planning Commission Minutes (Commercial Small Animal Uses Study Discussion,
meeting 2)

February 10, 2023 Staff Memo to Planning Commission (Commercial Small Animal Uses Definitions,
meeting 3)

February 10, 2023 Staff Memo to Planning Commission (Commercial Small Animal Uses Study
Questions, meeting 3)



Sources
e Minnesota Board of Veterinary Medicine

https://mn.gov/boards/veterinary-medicine/license/

e Minnesota Board of Animal Health
https://mn.gov/elicense/a-z/?1d=1083-
2312694#/list/appld/filterType//filterValue//page/1/sort//order/

¢ Dog Gurus: How Much Space to Run a Dog Daycare
https://thedoggurus.com/how-much-space-do-you-need-for-your-dog-daycare/



https://mn.gov/boards/veterinary-medicine/license/
https://mn.gov/elicense/a-z/?id=1083-231269#/list/appId//filterType//filterValue//page/1/sort//order/
https://mn.gov/elicense/a-z/?id=1083-231269#/list/appId//filterType//filterValue//page/1/sort//order/
https://thedoggurus.com/how-much-space-do-you-need-for-your-dog-daycare/

2.22.23 - Draft 2

ORDINANCE NO. 23 - __

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 7A
OF THE CITY OF COLUMBUS CODE OF ORDINANCES
REGULATING ANIMAL FACILITIES & HOUSEKEEPING AMENDMENTS

The City Council of the City of Columbus ordains the following amendments to the Code of
Ordinances:

SECTION 1. Chapter 7A, Article I1, Section 7A-201. Words and Phrases Defined, of the
Columbus Code of Ordinances is hereby amended as follows:

4.E “Animal Boarding Facility” — A commercial facility or service kept or maintained
for the temporary care and socializing of live small domestic animals for an unspecified
amount of time by a person other than the owner of the live animal. Animal boarding does
not include facilities that provide breeding of animals, selling of animals, impounding or
facilities whose primary source of revenue is licensed veterinarian services.

4.F. “Animal Day Care Facility” — A commercial facility or service kept or maintained
that provides temporary care of small domestic animals for periods not exceeding twelve
(12) hours a day.

4.G_‘“Animal Establishment, Other” — A commercial facility or service kept or maintained
that breeds, raises, sells, boards, distributes or exhibits animals for entertainment or
educational purposes including but not limited to kennels, aquariums, pet shops, petting
zoos, riding schools or stables, zoological parks or performing animal exhibitions as
licensed by the State of Minnesota.

4.H. “Animal Grooming Facility” — A commercial facility or service kept or maintained
where small domestic animals are bathed, clipped, shaved or combed, including accessory
product sales, and including boarding for not more than twelve (12) hours, incidental and
accessory to the grooming services.

4.1. “Animal Training Facility” — A commercial facility or service kept or maintained,
providing training of small domestic animals on a commercial basis, and including the
boarding of small domestic animals accessory and incidental to the training services for
periods not exceeding forty-eight (48) hours.

4EJ. “Animal Unit” [re-lettered only — no definition change]
4.G:K. “Antenna” [re-lettered only — no definition change]
110. “Veterinary Animal Hospital or Clinic” - A place used for the care, diagnosis,

and treatment of sick, ailing, infirm, or injured animals and those who are in need of
medical or surgical attention, and may include patient grooming, accessory product sales

Page 1 of 4
8



2.22.23 - Draft 2

and overnight accommodatlons on the Premlses for treatment, observatlon and/or
recuperation. e

SECTION II. Chapter 7A, Article VI and VII, Section 7A-600 Official Zoning Map of the
Columbus Code of Ordinances is hereby amended by adding the following at the end of the
list of approved zoning districts:

| C/I-Light Commercial/Industrial Light District

SECTION III. Chapter 7A, Article VI and VII of the Columbus Code of
Ordinances is hereby amended as follows:

SECTION 7A-663. MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL MIXED USE (MU-M)
DISTRICT CONDITIONAL USES.

S. Veterinary animal hospital or clinic-er-hespital, including accessory product sales and
accessory small animal patient indoor boarding; and grooming;-anéd-day-eare.

T. Small animal indoor bearding-grooming-e+-day-<eare, including anetlary-veterinary

eareaccessory product sales and periodic vaccination services.

SECTION 7A-673. MIXED USE HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (MU-H)
DISTRICT CONDITIONAL USES.

Q. Veterinary animal hospital or clinic-erhespital, including accessory product sales and
accessory small animal patient indoor boarding; and grooming;-and-day-eare.

R. Small animal indoor beardirng,-grooming, erday—eare; including anetllaryveterinary

eareaccessory product sales and periodic vaccination services.

SECTION 7A-683. COMMUNITY COMMERCIAL (CC) DISTRICT
CONDITIONAL USES.

O. Veterinary animal hospital or clinic-erhespital, including accessory product sales and
accessory small animal patient indoor boarding; and grooming;-anéd-day-eare.

P. Small animal indoor bearding,-grooming;-erday-—eare, including aneilary-veterinary
eareaccessory product sales and periodic vaccination services.

Q. Small animal indoor boarding, grooming or day care facility, lawfully permitted in the
District prior to January 1, 2003.

SECTION 7A-723. GENERAL BUSINESS (GB) DISTRICT
CONDITIONAL USES.

T. Veterinary animal hospital or clinic-er-hespital, including accessory product sales and
accessory small animal patient indoor boarding; and grooming;-and-day-care.

Page 2 of 4
9



10

2.22.23 - Draft 2

U. Small animal indoor bearding—grooming;—er—day—eare, including aneilary

veterinary-eareaccessory product sales and periodic vaccination services.

SECTION 7A-733. LIGHT INDUSTRIAL (LI) DISTRICT CONDITIONAL
USES. The following uses shall be conditional:

L. Veterinary animal hospital or clinic-erhespital, including accessory product
sales and accessory small animal patient indoor boarding; and grooming;and-day

M Small animal indoor bearding—grooming;—er—day—eare, including aneilary

veterinary-eareaccessory product sales and periodic vaccination services.

SECTION 7A-743. COMMERCIAL/INDUSTRIAL Cn DISTRICT
CONDITIONAL USES.

AA. Veterinary animal hospital or clinics, animal-hespitals;-and-commerecial dogkennels:

including accessory product sales and small animal patient indoor boarding and grooming.

SECTION 7A-746. COMMERCIAL/INDUSTRIAL LIGHT  (C/I-LIGHT)
DISTRICT CONDITIONAL USES.

V. Veterinary animal hospital or clinics, animal-hespitals;and-commeretal-dogkennels:

including accessory product sales and accessory small animal patient indoor boarding and
grooming.

SECTION IV.  Chapter 7A, Article VIII, Section 7A-809. Dog Kennels, Subsections B.
and C., of the Columbus Code of Ordinances are hereby amended to read:

B. Commercial, Mixed Use and Industrial Zoning Districts. Animal Boarding
Facilities, Animal Day Care Facilities and Commercial Dog Kennels are not permitted in
the MU-L. MU-M. MU-H, CC, GC, HC, HR., GB, LI, C/I and C/I-Light Zoning Districts.

SECTION V. Chapter 7A, Article VIII, Section 7A-812. L. of the Columbus Code of
Ordinances is hereby amended as follows:

L. Medical or Dental Clinics, Small-Animal-Veterinary Hospitals_or Clinics, and
Animal Grooming Facilities. One (1) parking space for each employee and two (2) spaces
for each patient room or station.

SECTION VI. Chapter 7A, Article VIII, Section 7A-820. A. of the Columbus Code of
Ordinances is hereby amended as follows:

Page 3 of 4
10



11

2.22.23 - Draft 2

SECTION 7A-820. PERFORMANCE STANDARDS FOR LANDSCAPING.

A. Minimum Quantities.

All proposed development activities, including site

modifications or use intensifications, shall be subject to landscaping improvements. The
following table illustrates requirements within each zoning district:

RR
MU-L

District

Overstory Trees

2 trees/unit/street frontage!
4 trees or 1/6000 sq. ft. site area®

MU-M
MU-H
MU-M
MU-MH
CC

GC

HC

GB

LI

Ccia
C/I-Light

2 trees/unit/open space exposure? >  (attached and detached single family)
2 trees/unit/open space exposure?*  (attached and detached single family)

4 trees or 1/6000 sq.
4 trees or 1/6000 sq.
4 trees or 1/6000 sq.
4 trees or 1/6000 sq.
4 trees or 1/6000 sq.
4 trees or 1/6000 sq.
4 trees or 1/6000 sq.
4 trees or 1/6000 sq.
4 trees or 1/6000 sq.

ft.
ft.
ft.
ft.
ft.
ft.
ft.
ft.
ft.

site area* (multiple family housing)
site area* (multiple family housing)
site area*
site area*
site area*
site area*
site area*
site area*
site area*

"Trees shall be deciduous (shade or ornamental) and planted at the boulevard, except on
cul de sacs where one (1) of the required trees may be planted off the boulevard but in
the front yard area.
2Trees shall be deciduous (shade or ornamental). Unit exposures with street frontage

shall be planted at the boulevard.

*Tree spacing must include trees at the boulevard at minimum fifty (50) feet intervals.
“The required number of trees is based upon a minimum of four (4) trees or one (1) tree
per six thousand (6,000) square feet of site areas (net of wetlands, surface waters and
existing road easements), whichever is greater. Tree spacing must include trees at the
boulevard at minimum fifty (50) feet intervals.

SECTION VII.
of

ATTEST:

Elizabeth Mursko, City Administrator

Published in the Forest Lake Times on

This Ordinance was adopted by the Columbus City Council on this day
, 2023 and shall become effective after its publication.

Jesse H. Preiner, Mayor

Page 4 of 4

11



12

ORDINANCE NO. 21-11

CITY OF COLUMBUS
COUNTY OF ANOKA
STATE OF MINNESOTA

AN INTERIM ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A MORATORIUM ON THE
ISSUANCE OF PERMITS FOR
SMALL ANIMAL INDOOR BOARDING, GROOMING, OR DAY CARE
WITHIN THE CITY OF COLUMBUS

The City Council of the City of Columbus ordains the following:

SECTION 1. MORATORIUM.

A. Authority and Intent. The City of Columbus (the “City”) is authorized under Minnesota
Statutes Section 462.355, Subd. 4, to regulate, restrict, or prohibit any use, development or
subdivision within the jurisdiction or a portion thereof while the City is conducting studies, or
has authorized a study to be conducted or has scheduled a hearing to consider adoption or
amendment of the Comprehensive Plan or official zoning controls. Pursuant to the
aforementioned statute, the City declares a City-wide moratorium (the “Moratorium”) on the
issuance of any permits, including without limitation, building permits or interim use permits, for
the establishment or renewal of small animal indoor boarding, grooming, or day care, including
ancillary veterinary care (as that term is used in Chapter 7A or elsewhere in the City Code) in
accordance with this ordinance.

B. Findings. The City finds it necessary to study the impacts and effects of the
establishment, use or operation of small animal indoor boarding, grooming, or day care,
including ancillary veterinary care (“Pet Boarding/Grooming”) on the health, safety, and welfare
of its citizens and the community. The City Council further finds that the existing controls
governing Pet Boarding/Grooming may not provide the desired level of oversight and regulation
of such uses, which makes it necessary to study the existing ordinance and alternative
ordinances, including recent amendments of the ordinance. Following the study, the City intends
to update and amend its official controls.

C. Effect of Moratorium. For the duration stated herein and until the City has completed a
study of the need for amendments or additions to the City’s official controls to protect the public
health, safety and welfare, the City shall not accept, issue or process any application for use of
real property anywhere in the City for the purpose of establishment or renewal of Pet
Boarding/Grooming, except as provided in this ordinance. This Moratorium shall apply, without
limitation, to comprehensive land use plan amendments, requests for rezoning, subdivisions,
variances, conditional use permits, interim use permits, site plan review or any other permits for
the establishment or renewal of Pet Boarding/Grooming.

12



13

D. Study Authorized. During the period of this Moratorium, City staff and consultants will
conduct a study of the official controls related to establishment, use and expansion of Pet
Boarding/Grooming, including appropriate permitting, licensing, land use controls and
development standards that may need to be adopted or revised to protect the public health, safety
and welfare. The study will focus, among other things, on regulations designed to minimize the
nuisance characteristics of such uses, including protection of nearby residential homes, quiet
enjoyment of neighbors and expansion of the City’s tax base.

E. Duration. The Moratorium shall expire, without further action of the City Council, one (1)
year from its effective date. In the alternative, it may be repealed earlier if the Council
determines that the requisite studies have been completed and that appropriate evaluation and
action, including any necessary revisions to the City Code, official controls and/or
Comprehensive Plan, have been finalized, adopted by the City Council and made effective by
publication. The duration of the Moratorium may be extended by adoption of an amendment
hereto for a total time not to exceed the limits set forth in Minnesota Statutes Section 462.355,
Subd. 4, as amended from time to time.

F. Moratorium Declaration and Applicability. The City Council specifically finds and declares
that the findings, intent and purpose of this Moratorium of City Code applies Citywide and it
hereby imposes on any parcel of land, lot or part thereof within the boundaries of the City a
prohibition on the establishment or renewal of any Pet Boarding/Grooming for the duration of
the Moratorium. City staff, consultants, and Planning Commission members are directed for the
duration of this Moratorium to carefully study and consider the adequacy and effectiveness of the
existing licensing, zoning and Comprehensive Plan regulations necessary to protect the public
health, safety and welfare, as well as to study and consider amendments to those regulations. The
City Council further finds that it is critical to the protection of the public health, safety and
welfare that the study process be protected by a moratorium.

G. Hardship Waiver. In cases of hardship, any person having a legal or equitable interest in land
and aggrieved by the requirements of this Moratorium may apply to the City Council for a
waiver of all or a portion of the applicable restrictions. A waiver may be granted when the City
Council finds substantial and unique hardship caused by the restrictions and finds that the waiver
will not unduly affect the integrity of the planning process or the purposes for which this
Moratorium was enacted.

H. Severability. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Moratorium is for
any reason held to be invalid or any action taken hereunder be held invalid, it shall not affect any
other section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase herein. Every section, subsection, sentence,
clause and phrase herein is declared severable from every other section, subsection, sentence,
clause or phrase.

SECTION II. Enforcement. The City may enforce this ordinance by mandamus, injunction or
other appropriate civil remedy in any court of competent jurisdiction.

13



14

SECTION III. EFFECTIVE DATE.

This Ordinance was adopted by the Columbus City Council on this 29" day of December, 2021
and shall become effective after its publication.

Jesse H. Preiner, Mayor

ATTEST:

Elizabeth Mursko, City Administrator

Published in the Forest Lake Times on , 2022,

4886-1840-6920, v. 1

14



15

RESOLUTION 21-29

CITY OF COLUMBUS
COUNTY OF ANOKA
STATE OF MINNESOTA

RESOLUTION TO ORDER A STUDY FOR
REGULATION OF PET BOARDING/GROOMING

WHEREAS, the City of Columbus (the “City”) is authorized under Minnesota Statutes Section
462.355, subd. 4 to regulate, restrict, or prohibit any use, development or subdivision within the
jurisdiction or a portion thereof while the City is conducting studies, or has authorized a study to be
conducted to consider adoption or amendment of official zoning controls; and

WHEREAS, The City Council finds that the existing zoning controls governing the
establishment, expansion or continued use of property for “small animal indoor boarding, grooming, or
day care, including ancillary veterinary care” (“Pet Boarding/Grooming”), as theses term are used in
Chapter 7A of the City Code, may not effectively minimize the nuisance characteristics of such uses or
protect nearby property; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that absent a thorough analysis of potential amendments to
the official zoning controls could result in the approval of new or renewal of existing Pet
Boarding/Grooming could have unintended detrimental consequences to the health, safety, and welfare
of the City.

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved that the City of Columbus does hereby direct the City
Planning Commission and staff to conduct a study of the City’s existing zoning controls and potential
amendments to regulation of Pet Boarding/Grooming to mitigate potential negative impacts and effects
of the establishment or renewal of such use on the health, safety, and welfare of its citizens and the
community.

Passed and adopted by the City Council of the City of Columbus, Minnesota, this 29" day of

December, 2021. : p A
By:(J P)ho /4 U N

Jesse H. Preiner
Its: Mayor

ATTEST:

E sdoh Mol
Eliz\éb@th Mursko
City Administrator

4862-2876-8008, v. 1

15



16

PUBLIC HEARING - Joeseph M Lefto, MUDDY PAWS, CUP and ZONING
ORDIANCE TEXT AMENDMENT

Public Hearing and Discussion — 15120 West Freeway Dr. NE, Joseph M Lefto, Conditional
Use Permit and Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment to continue the use of a small animal
boarding and grooming facility with ancillary veterinary care and retail sales.

Gutknecht read the public notice. Joeseph Lefto and his daughter Olivia Lefto of 26305 Glen
Oak Dr, Wyoming introduced themselves.

Lefto explained that they are working on a purchase agreement subject to the conditional use
permit approval from the City. They would like to continue the Muddy Paws business in
Columbus with no changes to the property. They are intending to acquire it and continue running
it as is. Planning Commission Chair Hanegraaf ask if the applicant had received the city staff
report for the Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment with 9 Findings of Fact and one
recommendations, and the staff report for the Conditional Use Permit application with 26
findings of fact and 33 recommendations and if the applicant had any questions.

Lefto stated he had received them, and explained he has two major issues to address which is
connecting to city sewer and water and fixing the parking lot. These are both expensive and
technically difficult and he wants to request additional time to meet the requirements. He is
requesting 24 months for the sewer hookup and 36 for the parking lot.

Wolowski asked how “small animal” was defined. Lefto explained the intent was dogs and cats.
Wolowski asked if that should be a text amendment and asked staff for their opinion.
Johnson explained that he did not feel like the commission should make a distinction to avoid
limiting the use or vet activity to others. It was confirmed that the Conditional Use Permit would
dictate the type of animals allowed to be boarded, and not allow other “small animals”.

Berens asked if the adjourning properties were vacant and for sale. Gutknecht explained the state
of the surrounding properties and confirmed that the northern parcel is for sale. Hanegraaf asked
how the applicant planned to separate the cats from the dogs. Lefto explained the cat cages were
in a separate room as indicated in the plans and cats would not have a communal play area.

King asked if the applicant planned to redo the sign out front and if they would be coming in for
a permit for this. The applicant confirmed this and explained that they would have an agreement
to utilize the Muddy Paws business name for a time before changing it to a similar name “Muddy
Paws: Play and Stay”. Olivia Lefto explained that the name would be kept similar to let
people know the business is still there but to add the language to differentiate from the Andover
location and make it their own. King commended her for making this service available for pet
owners and thanked her for her effort to connect with Running Aces. Olivia Lefto noted that they
had already had a racer want to board his dog due to there being no facilities at Running
Aces. Wolowski thanked the applicant for introducing themselves and their business to the
commission in a way that they felt good about their fit as a business for Columbus.

King noted that Finding of Fact #8 on page 57 of the PUD identified an unscreened dumpster
and recalled the current ordinance as requiring a screen that is 2ft higher than the dumpster and

8of11
PC - 06.02.2021
City of Columbus 1 6



17

matches the building. She asked to add this as recommendation #27. Lefto asked about the
timelines for these three recommendations.

King said the staff report recommends required public hookup prior to September 30, 2021. She
said the city was being consistent with other properties and applicants that have been required to
hook up in the past. Mursko confirmed that the hook up to city sewer/water is required at the
point of sale and would be required within one construction season, also noted it includes brining
the pipes from street to building. King said she realizes it is a significant cost but explained that
the city has been carrying the debt of a many properties who have not hooked up and so they do
not want to set a precedent.

Lefto said the point of sale would not likely be until July 2021 and that this did not leave much
time to find someone to complete the work. That is why he is requesting to stagger the larger
finical requirements, to have an opportunity to realize a profit prior to making too many site
improvements... Hanegraaf suggested the applicant work this into the sale. Lefto asked if this
was the requirement of the current owner. Mursko explained that the current owners have known
about the requirement hookup for 10 years and were noticed when the deadline was mandatory.
This deadline was October 2019, and another grace period was given due to COVID. Mursko
said in this case it makes sense to take the construction period into consideration. Mursko said
everyone in this area was aware of this requirement and the realtors and property owners should
have disclosed this.

Lefto said it is his intention to get these projects done but that he was not sure how with the
current timelines. Wolowski asked when they planned on closing the sale and Lefto said in July.
Wolowski noted that she has been having trouble finding anyone able to schedule in similar
work. Lefto said he is working with the current owner to have escrow funds included with the
sale. The group discussed what timeline they would want to present to the council and decided
on July 2022 for the sewer/water hookup requirement. They noted that the commission is just a
recommending body and so they final decision is made by the city council.

The applicant is requesting the parking lot completion timeline to be July 2023. Lefto asked if
the current property owners in the area are being treated with different standards for parking.
Mursko explained that these properties have their existing CUP’s approved under a prior City
Council and Ordinance standards the time so these changes would not be able to be required
without an amendment to their CUP. Once a permit is amended or opened the property is then
required to meet the current standards.

Lefto explained that it would help him be successful if the Commission allowed them to stagger
the completion timelines of these different projects. Hanegraaf noted that the sewer/water
hookup is of monetary value for the city and the parking lot is less urgent with this perspective.
King suggested a timeline of September 2021 for the parking lot and the commission discussed if
this would be realistic. Bobick recommended June 2022 and Wolowski recommended July 2022
for the parking lot. The group agreed on the timeline of July 2022 for the parking lot completion.
The commission agreed that the dumpster screening (condition #27) should be completed by
September 30", 2021.

9of 11
PC - 06.02.2021
City of Columbus

17



18

Motion by Wolowski to recommend approval of the text amendment application for Muddy
Paws with the findings of fact #1-9 and recommendations #1. Second by Bobick. Votes as
follows: Bobick — Aye, Berens — Aye, King — Aye, Wolowski — Aye, Hanegraaf — Aye. Motion
carried.

Motion by Wolowski to recommend approval of the Muddy Paws CUP with findings of fact #1-
26 and recommendations #1-27. The sunset dates are #16 July 30", 2022, #18 July 30, 2023, and
addition #27 September 30", 2021. Second by King. Votes as follows: Bobick — Aye, Berens —
Aye, King — Aye, Wolowski — Aye, Hanegraaf — Aye. Motion carried.

This matter will go before the City Council at their meeting on 06.09.2021.

10 of 11

PC - 06.02.2021
City of Columbus

18



19

Muddy Paws Conditional Use Permit Application

The Planning Commission also held a public hearing for a Conditional Use Permit and Text
Amendment for a dog boarding and grooming facility located at 15120 W. Freeway Drive. This
property has been used as a dog boarding and grooming facility for many years. The previous
business, Muddy Paws, operated under an Interim Use Permit (IUP). The current applicant has
requested a Conditional Use Permit (CUP). IUPs are temporary in nature and involve a renewal
process every few years. CUPs run with the land indefinitely and do not involve a renewal
process.

During the public hearing, applicants expressed concern over the timeframe for paving the
parking lot and connecting to utilities. To address these concerns, the Planning Commission
amended conditions 16 and 18, recommending extending the deadline to connect to utilities to
07.30.22 and 07.30.23 for paving the driveway. Finding of Fact 8 was also amended to require a
dumpster enclosure by 09.30.21, and condition 27 was added to reflect this. With those
changes, the Planning Commission unanimously recommended approval of the application.

The Council discussed the City’s responsibility for licensing a commercial boarding facility and
ensuring the health, safety, and wellness of animals at this location. Therefore, the CUP
conditions will include conditions for a license. In addition, Columbus Ordinances do not
address the health, safety, and wellness of animals at a boarding facility, so it is important that
the CUP conditions are thoughtfully crafted to address this aspect of the business. As such,
Hegland has prepared a list of questions for the applicant to answer to ensure all concerns about
health and safety are addressed.

The Council continued by asking why there is a request to defer connecting to utilities when
there is escrow money being saved for that purpose. Joe Lefto explained that the issue is not
cost, it is that they have been unable to find a construction company able to do the work this
season. City Attorney Bill Griffith noted that City ordinances allow utility connections to be
deferred until construction is feasible, if there is money in escrow at the time of closing which
would cover the cost.

Lefto said they have no issue providing responses to the questions posed by Hegland. He will
provide those answers to City Staff as soon as they are written. Mursko explained that there is
sufficient time left in the review period to continue the application to a future meeting.

Motion by Hegland to continue discussion on the Muddy Paws CUP application to the
06.23.2021 City Council meeting, subject to receiving materials from the applicant
addressing the memo from Hegland (dated 06.09.2021). Seconded by Logren. Roll call
vote; Busch — aye; Hegland — aye; Mayor Preiner — aye; Wagamon — aye; Logren — aye.
Motion carries.

11 OF 18
June 9, 2021
City of Columbus
City Council

19



20

10. Planning Commission Report
Conditional Use Permit Application — Muddy Paws, 15120 W. Freeway Drive NE

This item was continued from the previous City Council meeting to allow time for the applicant
to address questions raised by the Council. Answers were not received from the applicant until
Monday 06.21.21, which did not give City Staff sufficient time to update the Staff Report. There
is also a desire to have the City’s animal control contractor review the application prior to further
discussion. As such, the Council is recommending continuing the application to the next City
Council meeting.

Motion by Hegland to continue discussion on the Muddy Paws Conditional Use Permit
application to the 07.21.2021 City Council meeting. Seconded by Logren. Roll call vote;
Busch — aye; Hegland — aye; Mayor Preiner — aye; Wagamon — aye; Logren — aye. Motion
carries.

Motion by Hegland to approve Ordinance 21-05, an ordinance amending Chapter 7A of
the City of Columbus code of ordinances. Seconded by Wagamon. Roll call vote; Busch —
aye; Hegland — aye; Mayor Preiner — aye; Wagamon — aye; Logren — aye. Motion carries.

Motion by Hegland to amend her earlier motion to continue discussion on the Muddy Paws
Conditional Use Permit application to the 07.14.21 City Council meeting. Seconded by
Logren. Roll call vote; Busch — aye; Hegland — aye; Mayor Preiner — aye; Wagamon — aye;
Logren — aye. Motion carries.

19 OF 22
June 23, 2021
City of Columbus
City Council

20



21

8. Planning Commission Report

Muddy Paws Conditional Use Permit Application

The City Council continued discussion on the Muddy Paws conditional use permit (CUP)
application from their previous meeting. Since that time a tour of the facility was attended by
Council Members Hegland and Logren, Associate Planner Ben Gutknecht, and Animal Control
Officer Mark Anderson. Gutknecht summarized comments from Anderson made during the
visit. The items addressed by Anderson were the ratio of humans to dogs, annual fire department
review, state standards or animal boarding health and safety, the number of surfaces impervious
to moisture, and the process for determining the maximum number of dogs allowed on site.

Hegland asked if Anderson commented on ventilation? Gutknecht replied yes, he stated that
ventilation should be improved in the play area and the kennel room. He added that Anderson is
willing to submit a report with his recommendations if the Council desires.

Hegland thanked the applicants for leading a tour of the facility. She indicated she would like the
Council to have additional time to formulate CUP conditions with adequately address their
concerns but are not too restrictive. Logren agreed, noting that a CUP for animal boarding and
grooming is not something that has been done before in Columbus. All Council members agreed
that the business is a good fit for the City.

Busch recommended approving the application with the condition that applicants conform with
the animal control recommendations. City Attorney Bill Griffith replied that approval of the
application would not be appropriate if additional information will be submitted to the Council
after tonight’s meeting. Because the CUP will run indefinitely, it is important that conditions are
well thought out. If additional information is to be submitted for the purpose of informing
conditions, he recommends continuing the application again.

Applicant Joe Lefto indicated that they have no issue complying with the recommendations
raised today. He added that an additional continuation of the application will put the property
sale at risk. Hegland noted that the City is well within the 120 day review period for the CUP
application.

Gutknecht will ask Anderson to provide a report with his recommendations on the facility, which
will be circulated to applicants and Council members prior to the next City Council meeting.

Motion by Hegland to continue discussion of the Muddy Paws CUP application at 15120 W.
Freeway Drive to the 07.28.2021 City Council meeting to allow time to review and update
the City Staff report to include information from the Animal Control Officer and
application. Seconded by Logren. Hegland — aye; Busch — nay; Mayor Preiner — aye;
Wagamon — nay; Logren — aye. Motion carries.

20F 11
July 14, 2021
City of Columbus
City Council

21



22

8. Planning Commission Report

Muddy Paws Request for CUP

The Conditional Use Permit (CUP) application from Muddy Paws was continued from a previous
meeting. Mursko explained that Muddy Paws is an existing business that historically operated
under an interim use permit (IUP). The IUP will expire next year. The CUP was submitted by
prospective buyers of Muddy Paws, Olivia Lefto and Joe Lefto.

In addition to addressing the CUP application, the Council is delegated authority by the State of
Minnesota to license this type of business, which involves overseeing operational concerns. City
Attorney Bill Griffith indicated that CUP conditions may address zoning concerns as well as
operational concerns. Operational conditions have to do with a business’ particular use and are
typically addressed through licensure. He further clarified that conditions set by the Council can
go outside of what City Code addresses, as long as they are reasonably related to the use.

Applicant Olivia Lefto addressed the Council. She thanked everyone involved in the process. She
also noted a few items that applicants disagreed with Council members on such as capacity limits,
crate usage, humidity control, young dogs, immunization waiting period, and inspections. She
added that their customers act as the ultimate inspectors/judges each time they visit their business,
and will either choose to use Muddy Paws’ services or stop bringing their animals.

Associate Planner Ben Gutknecht reported that Council Members Hegland and Wagamon have
submitted comments on the application’s findings of fact and conditions. Each comment was
addressed by the group individually.

Findings of fact background paragraph: Hegland recommended striking "...to expand small animal
boarding, daycare and grooming business and to” in line 11 of the introduction so the sentence
would read “Due to the temporary nature of an interim use permit, and actions taken by the Council
regarding future uses within the freeway corridor, the applicant is applying for a Conditional Use
Permit and a Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment to continue the use of the existing canine
boarding, daycare and grooming business with the possible future addition of cat boarding.” The
Council agreed to this change.

Hegland recommended adding reference to the 07.13.21 and 07.22.21 animal control memos.
Griffith said that references to memos can be included as background information in the findings
of fact. If these memos contain recommendations, they should be extracted and listed as numbered
conditions in the final report. Gutknecht said that he will reference both memos in the background
information and list recommendations from the memos as separate conditions.

Finding of Fact 14: Hegland recommended revising to say “The applicant stated that the proposed
future cat boarding would be housed in an area of the facility physically separated, and not in
visual contact with dogs”. The Council agreed to this change.

Finding of Fact 20: Hegland recommended revising to say the applicant indicated their request
for a utility hookup deadline of 36 months can be withdrawn, and that their memo indicates they

2 OF 39
July 28, 2021
City of Columbus
City Council

22



23

will need at least 9 months to connect to utilities. Griffith noted that this is just a finding of fact
and not a condition of approval. The Council agreed that this finding should be struck.

Finding of Fact 23: Hegland recommended revising to say the applicant agrees there is adequate
space to expand parking should the business grow beyond its projected staffing and service levels,
and they are willing to do so. Griffith noted that this language is evolving the finding into a
condition. He added that the applicant will be required to meet City Code requirements on parking
spaces if the business expands. At the current level of business, 18 parking spaces meets code.
The Council agreed to not revise this finding.

Finding of Fact 33: Hegland asked the applicant if they intend to grow their grooming business,
and they indicated that they do not. Gutknecht recommended not revising this finding because the
grooming business will not be expanding. The Council agreed.

Finding of Fact 34: Hegland recommended revising to require a CUP amendment if the applicant
decides to add services for cats. Griffith said this requirement should be addressed with a new
condition rather than with a finding of fact. Whether the addition of services for cats should require
administrative review or a CUP amendment is a policy decision that the Council must decide.

Motion by Hegland to add a condition stating the addition of services for cats requires an
amendment to the CUP and cannot be done administratively. Seconded by Mayor Preiner.
Hegland — aye; Busch — nay; Mayor Preiner — aye; Wagamon — nay; Logren — aye. Motion
carries.

This change will also require striking any reference to cats throughout the findings of fact and
conditions.

Finding of Fact 35: Hegland recommended striking “Additionally, they have 5 folding crates for
those dogs that find crates more comfortable”. Based on her experience and the Animal Control
Officer’s memos, clients prefer bringing their own crates rather than using crates that Muddy Paws
provides. Griffith again indicated that this is a finding of fact, not a condition, and should only
make factual statements. The Council agreed to address the issue of folding crates during
discussion of conditions, and to strike the portion of this finding which references folding crates.

Finding of Fact 36: Hegland recommended amending to address a concern that the maximum
number of allowable dogs is too high because it assumes that boarded animals from the same
family prefer to be boarded together. In her experience this is not the case. In response to this
recommendation, the applicant indicated that nearly all their multi-dog families prefer boarding
them together. They also indicated that they need a maximum number of 58 dogs for overnight
boarding. The condition addressing maximum number of dogs says that no more than 60 is
allowed. The Council agreed that the maximum number of dogs should be amended throughout
the findings and conditions to read 58 instead of 60. This change is based on the number of
kennels, the typical percentage of clients who request their dogs be boarded together, and the
staffing plan to assure a 1:12 staff ratio when the boarded dogs are let out for play and exercise.
Hegland also proposed clarifying in the conditions that the facility may not exceed a maximum of a

3 0OF 39
July 28, 2021
City of Columbus
City Council

23



24

1:12 ratio of staff to dogs in the separate areas dogs are kept (inside and outside), based on the animal
control report.

Motion by Hegland to strike Finding of Fact 36, to amend Condition 8 to read that the
maximum number of dogs allowed for boarding is 58, and to strike mention of daycare and
grooming from that condition. Seconded by Mayor Preiner. Motion carries unanimously.

Finding of Fact 47: Hegland recommended that this finding reference the 07.21.21 memo from
the animal control officer. Based on earlier discussion on the animal control memos, the Council
agreed to leave the finding as is.

Condition 7: Hegland recommended including two additional vaccinations in this condition:
Distemper, hepatitis, parainfluenza, and parvovirus (DHPP), and Bordatella. The applicant
indicated that their business already requires these vaccinations.

Motion by Hegland to amend Condition 7 to add DHPP (distemper, hepatitis, parainfluenza,
and parvovirus) and bordatella to the list of required vaccinations. Seconded by Mayor
Preiner. Motion carries unanimously.

Hegland continued by recommending the same vaccination requirements for grooming.

Motion by Hegland to amend Condition 7 to require DHPP, bordatella, and rabies
vaccinations for grooming services. Seconded by Busch. Motion carries unanimously.

Hegland’s next two recommendations involved the definition of “fully vaccinated” — meaning
they have received all the vaccine/boosters required to achieve full immunity.

1. Hegland asserted that most references for boarding facilities recommend that the dog be
fully vaccinated 10-14 days prior to their boarding, grooming, or day care appointment
to give the vaccine time to reach full effectiveness against illness.

2. She noted that the CDC recommends a longer interval for rabies vaccination than the
applicant has proposed. She continued by quoting the CDC website: “An animal is
considered currently vaccinated and immunized if the initial vaccination was
administered at least 28 days previously [to boarding date] or booster vaccinations have
been administered in accordance with veterinarian recommendations. Because a rapid
anamnestic response is expected, an animal is considered currently vaccinated
immediately after a booster vaccination.”).

The applicant countered that adopting these conditions would put them at a competitive
disadvantage with other boarding facilities in the area. Hegland stated her recommendations
would be a best practice but acknowledged the applicant’s response and noted that she understood
how this requirement could be harmful to their business. As a compromise Hegland withdrew
both recommendations and requested that the applicants proactively educate their customers on
the risks of boarding their dogs if there has been an inadequate period of time after vaccination to
ensure full immunity. She also requested that the owners ensure their employees understand there
will be dogs boarding that may not be fully immunized against rabies.

4 OF 39
July 28, 2021
City of Columbus
City Council

24



25

Condition 11: Hegland recommended amending this condition to say that keeping more than one
dog in an individual kennel is permitted for pets from the same owner when requested and if the
size constraints allow for it.

Motion by Hegland to amend Condition 11 to allow more than one dog in an individual
kennel if they are from the same owner and the kennel is the required size (must be of
sufficient size to allow each dog or cat to turn about fully and to stand, sit, and lie in a
comfortable, normal position). Seconded by Wagamon. Motion carries unanimously.

Condition 15: Hegland recommended adding language stating that the facility must be designed
to protect dogs from transmission of communicable diseases.

Motion by Hegland to amend Condition 15 to read “The facility shall be structurally
sound, maintained in good repair, and designed to protect the dogs from injury,
transmission of communicable diseases and prohibit the entrance of other animals.” .
Seconded by Wagamon. Motion carries unanimously.

Condition 17: Hegland recommended adding language requiring the maintenance of a comfortable
humidity level in the facility and adequate ventilation. The applicant disagrees with the humidity
requirement because the facility is already temperature controlled. Hegland responded by
amending her recommendation to strike reference to standards outlined in State Statute and the
specific humidity ranges previously suggested.

Motion by Hegland to amend Condition 17 to read “Facility shall be sufficiently heated or
cooled when necessary and be compliant with maintaining recommended ambient
temperature of not less than 50 degrees Fahrenheit or no greater than 85 degrees
Fahrenheit at floor level. All housing facilities must be adequately ventilated. Drafts,
odors, and moisture condensation must be minimized.” Seconded by Wagamon. Motion
carries unanimously.

Condition 18: Hegland recommended amending to add reference to when dogs should be required
to come back indoors to protect from severe weather and temperatures. Joe Lefto indicated that
dogs are always supervised when they are outside and may have to go outside during weather
events to relieve themselves. Hegland said that her intent is to prevent dogs from being outside in
inclement weather for prolonged periods, not to prevent them from relieving themselves when
necessary.

Motion by Hegland to amend Condition 18 to say that animals will not be allowed outdoors
for prolonged periods of time if the outdoor temperature or heat index is warmer than 85
degrees Fahrenheit or if the outdoor temperature or wind chill is less than 45 degrees
Fahrenheit, and to require that dogs be moved inside during inclement weather. Seconded
by Wagamon. Motion carried unanimously.

Condition 19: Hegland recommended amending this condition to say that dogs will be fed only
food that is approved by the Association of American Feed Control Officials (AAFCO). This
gives the applicant more options than requiring one brand.

50F 39
July 28, 2021
City of Columbus
City Council

25



26

Motion by Hegland to amend condition 19 to read “The dogs shall have access to clean
water all times and if the food is not provided by the owner, be fed AAFCO (Association of
American Feed Control Officials) approved food on at least a once-a-day basis. Further,
food and water shall be stored in sanitary conditions and containers sufficient to prevent
pests or vermin infestation. All other food provided by pet owner shall be stored as
required to maintain sanitary/safe condition and shelf life.” Seconded by Mayor Preiner.
Motion carries unanimously.

Condition 20: Hegland recommended amending to require the applicant submit a wellness plan
to be reviewed by the Animal Control Officer. Lefto indicated that an animal wellness plan was
already submitted as part of their business handbook. Hegland said as long as that plan is approved
by the Animal Control Officer at their annual inspection that is acceptable.

Motion by Hegland to amend Condition 20 to read “ Dogs shall be kept in safe clean
conditions and treated a manner promoting the pets’ health, comfort, and wellness
consistent with the additional submittals received June 20, 2021, entitled Animal Wellness
Plan, which must be annually reviewed and approved by Animal Control Officer.”
Seconded by Mayor Preiner. Motion carries unanimously.

Condition 21: Hegland recommended amending this condition to require that cleaning be done as
outlined in the State of Minnesota rules.

Motion by Hegland to amend Condition 21 to read “Kennel and facility cleaning shall be
conducted as follow; the premises, housing facilities, exercise areas, and confinement areas
must be cleaned and disinfected as often as necessary to maintain a clean and sanitary
condition. Animal confinement areas must be cleaned at least once daily. Measures must be
taken to protect animals from being splattered with water or feces and from exposure to
harmful chemicals during cleaning. Bedding, if used, must be kept clean and dry. Outdoor
runs and exercise areas must be kept clean and soiled base material must be replaced as
necessary. Specific cleaning and disinfecting protocols for the facility and exercise areas
must be approved annually by the Animal Control Officer.” Seconded by Busch. Motion
carries unanimously.

Condition 22: Hegland recommended amending to include an emergency preparedness plan to be
drilled and approved by the Animal Control Officer and Fire Chief along with the fire plan.

Motion by Hegland to amend Condition 22 to read “Fire and emergency preparedness plan
shall be developed and drilled as outlined in additional materials submitted by applicant and
approved by Fire Marshall/Fire Chief and Animal Control Officer.” . Seconded by Mayor
Preiner. Motion carries unanimously.

Condition 23: Hegland recommended amending to require the waste management control plan be
approved by the Animal Control Officer.

Motion by Hegland to amend Condition 23 to say “Dog excrement, urine or other bodily
fluids shall be removed from kennels at least once daily and from indoors and outdoors

exercise areas immediately upon elimination, the area disinfected and the waste disposed of

6 OF 39
July 28, 2021
City of Columbus
City Council

26



27

in a manner consistent with approved solid waste disposal regulations as outlined in the
Waste Management Plan received from applicant and approved by the Animal Control
Officer.” Seconded by Mayor Preiner. Motion carries unanimously.

Condition 24: Hegland recommended amending to require the business be conducted in a manner
consistent with additional materials received by the City. Griffith indicated that this condition is
not necessary, as this intention is covered by other conditions.

Motion by Hegland to strike Condition 24. Seconded by Mayor Preiner. Motion carries
unanimously.

Condition 26: Hegland recommended amending to prohibit the facility from serving as an
impound shelter, rescue facility, or from being used to house rescued or stray animals.

Motion by Hegland to amend Condition 26 to read “The dog daycare and commercial
boarding facility cannot serve as an impound shelter or rescue facility or house rescued or
stray animals or dogs.” Seconded by Mayor Preiner. Motion carries unanimously.

Condition 30: Hegland recommended amending this condition to reference the appropriate City
Ordinance for lighting standards.

Motion by Hegland to amend Condition 30 to say that lighting must be downcast and
shrouded “as required by Columbus Ordinance Section 7A-813 for outdoor lighting
standards.” Seconded by Mayor Preiner. Motion carries unanimously.

Condition 31: Hegland recommended amending to exempt fire extinguishers and other materials
required for the fire/emergency preparedness plans. Griffith also recommended adding the term
“hazardous” before “chemicals”.

Motion by Hegland to amend Condition 31 to say “There are to be no hazardous chemicals,
gasses, hazardous wastes, fumes, or odors including that of composting organic material, on
the Property as a result of this business, except for fire extinguishers or other materials
required in the Fire/Emergency Preparedness Plan.” Seconded by Mayor Preiner. Motion
carries unanimously.

Hegland also recommended the addition of four new conditions.

The first is the requirement of a medical emergency plan to be approved by the Animal Control
Officer at yearly inspections. This plan should address any medical emergencies that need to be
addressed immediately such as choking, stopped breathing, or heavy bleeding and transport to an
affiliated veterinary clinic/hospital and/or emergency veterinary clinic.

Motion by Hegland to add Condition 40 requiring a medical emergency plan to be approved
by the Animal Control Officer on an annual basis. Seconded by Mayor Preiner. Motion
carries unanimously.

The second is the requirement of an infection control plan also to be reviewed by the Animal
Control Officer during yearly inspections.

7 OF 39
July 28, 2021
City of Columbus
City Council

27



28

Motion by Hegland to add Condition 41 requiring an infection control plan to be reviewed
and approved by the Animal Control Officer on an annual basis. Seconded by Mayor
Preiner. Motion carries unanimously.

The third would require an inspection by the Animal Control Officer in the first six months of
operations. If there are no citations issued at this inspection, inspections can move to a yearly
basis.

Motion by Hegland to add Condition 39 requiring an inspection by the Animal Control
Officer within the first six months of operation, and to move to yearly inspections if there
are no citations issued at the first inspection. Seconded by Mayor Preiner. Motion carries
unanimously.

The fourth recommendation revisited the definition of kennel. The issue is that the applicant has
indicated they would allow dogs under eight weeks of age as long as they are fully vaccinated, but
puppies are not fully vaccinated until they reach roughly six months. Columbus City Ordinances
defines kennel as any premises where dogs over six months in age are kept. Hegland asked the
question as to whether this ordinance would need to be amended since this kennel fully intends to
board puppies under 6 months of age. Mursko clarified that the intent of the ordinance was for
kennels in residential zones. The Council agreed that this ordinance was not intended for
commercial boarding facilities and to address this issue by amending that ordinance during a
workshop scheduled for review of animal related ordinances.

There was also agreement to address this issue by amending Condition 7 to read that all dogs over
six months in age must be fully vaccinated.

Motion by Hegland to amend Condition 7 to read “All dogs older than six months of age
allowed in day care must be fully vaccinated against DHPP, bordatella, and rabies. Seconded
by Mayor Preiner. Motion carries unanimously.

Hegland continued by revisiting the discussion on whether Muddy Paws should utilize crates for
boarding purposes and, if so, whether they shall provide crates or if owners should be expected to
bring their own. She cited the Animal Control report that discouraged use of crates for boarding
purposes due to safety reasons. She added that if crates were used because that was the owner’s
preference, an owner’s crate would be preferable. This is because the dog would be familiar with
it and it would limit liability for the facility should the dog be injured in the crate. Hegland also
stated that the crate should be placed inside the kennel run to prevent dogs from viewing other
dogs or being placed next to another crate with an unfamiliar dog in it. Joe Lefto said that he
prefers to give dog owners discretion over crates — choosing to provide their own or use the ones
provided. The majority of the Council agreed to allow Muddy Paws to use crates as requested by
their clients and provide crates for their customers who do not want to bring their own.

The last condition to be added was recommended by Griffith to read “Upon approval of the
Conditional Use Permit, the applicant shall be allowed to continue operations while satisfying
conditions of approval, provided the applicant comes into compliance with all conditions within
12 months of issuance of this Conditional Use Permit.”

8 OF 39
July 28, 2021

City of Columbus
City Council

28



29

Mursko clarified that conditions currently require hooking up to public utilities by 12.31.2021. If
there are issues finding a contractor who can do the work by that time, the City will accept an
escrow for the amount until work can be completed.

Motion by Wagamon to approve the Muddy Paws Conditional Use Permit application for
15120 W. Freeway Drive subject to Findings of Fact 1- 50 and Conditions of Approval 1- 42,
from the City Staff Report (dated 07.28.2021), Conditions 1-8 from the Animal Control
Report (dated 07.22.2021), information submitted by applicant, and discussion from the
07.28.2021 City Council meeting, including the addition of Condition 42 as read by City
Attorney Bill Griffith. Seconded by Busch. Motion carries unanimously.

Muddy Paws Conditional Use Permit Application Findings of Fact:

1.

10.

The City received a complete Conditional Use Permit (CUP) application from Joseph Lefto
(Muddy Paws) on May 7, 2021.

The 60-day review deadline is July 6, 2021.
The 120-day review deadline is September 4, 2021.

The “Property” in question is a total of 2.79 gross acres, located 15120 West Freeway Dr.
NE, legally described as That Part of the Northwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter Lying
Southerly of the North 846 feet Thereof and Lying Westerly of Westerly Right-of-Way
Line of Interstate 35; Subject to Easement of Record, Anoka County Minnesota (PIN: 24-
32-22-42-0009)

The Property is zoned Commercial Retail (CR).

The neighboring Property directly to the north consists of a similar sized vacant parcel, the
neighboring properties to the west/ southwest consist of a horse racing track and hotel. To
the east of the Property is County Highway 54 and Interstate 35.

The property is currently used as commercial dog boarding, dog daycare, and grooming
business, previously approved via Interim Use Permit.

The Property currently consists of an existing six thousand (6,000 s.f.) square foot building
with an attached three thousand (3,000 s.f.) square foot fenced play area deg+us in the rear
and a three hundred (300 s.f.) square foot enclosure, primarily for elimination deg+usn to
the front. Additionally, the current site includes an unscreened dumpster and a Class V
gravel parking area.

The applicant proposes to continue to use the Property as a commercial dog boarding and
grooming business with the addition of boarding cats.

The applicant is applying for a Conditional Use Permit to be compliant with the intent of
Section 7A-763 (C) and continue to be in compliance with the intent of the forthcoming
Ordinance Amendment, which currently proposes this use as a Conditional Use going
forward. Further it allows the applicant a permanent use permit to reflect the investment
on the Property.

9 OF 39

July 28, 2021
City of Columbus
City Council

29



30

11.

The applicant states they do not intend on altering the day-to-day operations of the current
operations such as small animal daycare, boarding, and grooming, and minor retail sales.

12.The existing building contains two indoor play areas, introduction area, 26 kennels and a

grooming room per current floor plan dated 07.14.2021.

13.In addition, there is one bathroom, an equipment room, a break prep room, office, and

reception area per current floor plan dated 07.14.2021.

14.The applicant stated that the proposed cat boarding would be housed in an area of the

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

facility physically separated, and not in visual contact with dogs. in-its-own-enelosure;-as

Typical business hours include drop offs and pickups occurring Monday through Friday
between 6:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. for Saturday and Sunday.

The applicant does propose to change the exterior color to a neutral color to be more
harmonious with neighboring businesses. Additionally, the applicant proposes to
aesthetically alter exterior signage with improvements to design and logo.

Further, the applicant proposes to improve on the pet related retail offerings and clean and
aesthetically alter the interior for both human and animal benefit.

In the future, the applicant proposes to partner with neighboring businesses to offer pet
care services in conjunction with their business.

The Property is currently serviced via private well water and an on-site septic system.
Further the building is heated by a geothermal system based off the private well.

21.

22.
23.

24.

Section 7A-767 of the City Ordinance requires no use shall be approved in the CR district
without connection to public utilities. Additionally, Section 14-305 requires sewer and
water connection for all existing buildings that it is available to.

There are no proposed changes to the landscape plan.

There are 20 parking spaces indicated on the Site Plan located within the application packet
dated 05.07.2021. This appears to be adequate based on the number of pet stations, size of
dog grooming area, and reception/future retail area. The applicant has requested the size
be reduced to 18 parking spaces. Staff believes this to be adequate taking into consideration
Section 7A-812 requires one space per maximum employees on a shift (4 spaces), one
space per 200 square feet of retail/service area (approximately 2,493 s.f./200=12.5) and
one space per 2,000 square feet of gross area of storage area (3,507 s.£./2,000=1.7) for a
total of 18.25 parking spaces.

The parking area is currently non-conforming per City Ordinance Section 7A-812, which
requires all access drives and required parking areas for all businesses, attached residential
dwellings, churches, and schools shall be surfaced with bituminous or concrete.

10 OF 39

July 28, 2021
City of Columbus
City Council

30



31

25.
26.

27.

28.

29.

30.
31.
32.

33.
34.

35.

All dimensional standards for existing and proposed uses are met.

The Planning Commission held the required public hearing on the Muddy Paws application
on June 2", 2021.

The City Council reviewed the application on June 9, 2021, and continued action on the
application until review of requested additional information and health and safety plans
was able to be completed.

The applicant submitted additional information as requested by the City Council on June
20, 2021.

On June 23, 2021, the City Council continued the Conditional Use Permit application to
allow further time to review the applicant’s additional submittals.

A 60-day letter of extension was sent to the applicant via email on June 25, 2021.
The following findings were drafted upon review of the applicant’s additional submittals.

The applicant notes they do not expect to see more than five (5) customer vehicles in the
parking lot at one time, including pick up and drop off times.

They average five (5) grooming appointments per day.

The applicants are still working on a floor plan that is conducive to the boarding of cats.
The applicant has agreed to apply for a conditional use permit amendment prior to
providing daycare, boarding, and grooming services to cats.

The facility currently supports 26 kennel

s, all of which are at least five (5”) feet in height.

37.

38.

39.

40.

The applicants outlined their policy should a dog be injured while onsite; First, they attempt
to take the dog to their usual vet, if that is not possible, Muddy Paws works closely with
Blue Sky Animal Hospital or South Shore Animal hospital. For Emergencies dogs will be
brought to Paw Emergency Hospital or Blue Pearl Emergency Hospital.

Nutri Source lamb and rice formula is provided for dogs that have not been provided any
by their owners. The facility also has a refrigerator with storage for food, other food
additives, and medicine.

Water is provided 24 hours a day both in the kennel and in the play area, medication is
given as instructed, and each dog has a score cart used to track feeding and medication, the
chart is initialed by whomever fed, watered or administered medication.

All dogs boarded or in daycare have accesses to both indoor and outdoor play area where
they are monitored at all times. Outdoor is typically available during warmer months, such
as March to November. During winter dogs are usually let out only for bathroom breaks
and occasional play.

11 OF 39

July 28, 2021
City of Columbus
City Council

31



32

41.

42.

43.

44,

45.

46.

47.

48.

49.
50.

A Sanitation and Wellness Plan has been submitted which covers administration of
medication, medication and meal documentation, meal administration, and feeding and
watering guidelines. It also includes the cleaning process in the existing Staff Handbook,
which addresses the cleaning of kennels, play area, grooming and feeding room, and front
lobby area.

The applicant submitted a “Fire Emergency Plan”, which outlines staff’s duties should a
fire be present, such as leading dogs to outdoor play area. Additionally, it outlines that a
number of slip leads are located throughout the building should dogs need relocation to the
parking lot. There are also three (3) fire extinguishers located around the building. Further,
it outlines that smoke detectors are present throughout the building, which are monitored
by a security system that immediately notifies the Fire Department and building owner
should they go off. Lastly, it states that the Fire Department has installed a lock box with
a master key on the property and a white box is located near the door with a layout of the
kennel room to identify where dogs may be boarded.

Upon continuation of the application review, City Staff requested that the contracted
Columbus Animal Control Officer review the application materials for licensure
component and animal health and safety and conduct site visit.

Upon review of application materials, the Animal Control Officer drafted and sent a memo
dated July 13, 2021, outlining their comments and concerns.

Upon receipt of the Animal Control Officer’s memo, the applicants responded with
additional information dated July 14, 2021, consisting of answers to the Animal Control
Officer’s questions and an updated Site Plan.

A site visit was conducted on July 14, 2021. In attendance was the Animal Control Officer,
the Associate Planner, Councilmember’s Logren and Hegland, the applicants, and current
owner and operators of “Muddy Paws”.

At the July 14, 2021 City Council meeting, City staff identified six primary concerns made
by the Animal Control Officer while at the Site Visit, they are as follows: Improve interior
surfaces to be impervious for effective disinfectant, review fire plan with fire department,
identify maximum number of animals for boarding (26-58 dogs), identify maximum
number of animals for boarding and daycare (capacity cannot exceed 12 dogs per 1 staff
member), applicant should adhere to animal boarding health and safety standards outlined
in State Statute 346.39 and 1721.0520, and air ventilation should be improved.

Upon review of the summary, City Council voted three to two on July 14, 2021, to continue
the review of the CUP application and direct staff to have the Animal Control Office draft
a memo with recommendations.

No formal or additional conditions were made at that time.

The City of Columbus Animal Control Officer drafted a memo as directed by the City
Council outlining their findings, comments, and conditions pertaining to the Muddy Paws
Conditional Use Permit application, existing City Ordinance, State Code, and their own
site visit of the currently operation of Muddy Paws (conducted July 14, 2021), dated July
22,2021.

12 OF 39

July 28, 2021
City of Columbus
City Council

32



33

Muddy Paws Conditional Use Permit Conditions of Approval:

1. Approval of the CUP is contingent upon compliance with recommendations and comments
made by the City Animal Control Officer.

2. Approval of the CUP is contingent upon compliance with recommendations and comments
made by the City Engineer.

3. Approval of the CUP is contingent upon compliance with recommendations and comments
made by the Fire Marshal/Fire Chief, Building Official and an annual fire department
inspection.

4. Approval of the CUP is contingent upon compliance with recommendations and comments
made by the City Attorney.

5. Approval of the CUP is contingent upon compliance with requirements by the Anoka
County Highway Division.

6. Approval of the CUP is contingent upon compliance with requirements by Rice Creek
Watershed District.

7. All dogs over the age of 6 months and-eats allowed in day care, er overnight, and grooming
must be currently vaccinated against the following disease: Rabies, Distemper, Hepatitis,
parainfluenza, and parvovirus (DHPP), and Bordetella. eare-require-up-to-daterabies-and
any-otherrequired-vacetnations:

8. A maximum of fifty-eight (58) sixty(60)-tetal-eatsand dogs are allowed on premises for
boarding.;-dayeare;and-grooming.

9. Total capacity of dogs on premises shall not exceed 1 employee to 12 dogs while dogs are
under employee supervision.

10. The applicant shall improve all dog boarding and daycare areas with impervious surfaces
to improve sanitation and to further prevent the spread of communicable diseases.

11. The keeping of more than one dog er<at in an individual kennel is permitted for pets from
the same owner, when requested by the pets’ owner and is contingent on meeting the size
requirements of the individual kennel (must be of sufficient size to allow each dog or cat
to turn about fully and to stand, sit, and lie in a comfortable, normal position).

12. Dogs shall only be allowed out of doors in fenced-in areas and under continued employee
supervision.

13. The applicant shall apply for a conditional use permit amendment prior to changing the
operatlon to 1nc1ude the boardmg, davcare and groommg of cats. Aﬂ—&pdafeed—ﬂeer—p}&ﬂ

14. All boarding kennels shall be indoors.

13 OF 39
July 28, 2021
City of Columbus
City Council

33



34

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

The facility shall be structurally sound, maintained in good repair, and designed to protect
the dogs from injury, transmission of communicable diseases, and prohibit restriet-the
entrance of other animals.

Each eatand dog shall be provided with adequate floor space to allows such animal to turn
about freely and easily stand, sit and lie in a comfortable and normal position.

Facility shall be sufficiently heated or cooled when necessary and be compliant with
recommended ambient temperature standards-outhned-in-State-Statate of not less than 50
degrees Fahrenheit or no greater than exeeeds 85 degrees Fahrenheit at floor level. All
housing facilities must be adequately ventilated. Drafts, odors, and moisture condensation
must be minimized.

Animals may be provided temporary access to outdoor runs and exercise areas when
appropriate for the species, breed, and weather conditions. Outdoor facilities shall be
constructed to provide sufficient space for proposer exercise and movement of each dog
contained and enclosed by walls or fences sufficient to securely keep dogs within and
prevent entrance of other animal. Animals will be moved and secured inside if severe
weather is forecasted, animals will not be allowed outside for prolonged periods if the
outdoor temperature or heat index is greater than 85 Fahrenheit or if the outdoor

temperature or wind chill is less than 45 Fahrenhelt or if it 1s raining sleetmg, hghtenlng,

The dogs and-eats shall have access to clean water all times and if food is not provided by
the owner, be fed AAFCO (Association of American Feed Control Officials) approved
food on at least a once-a-day basis. befednutritiousfoods-on-a-daily-basts: Further, food
and water shall be stored in sanitary conditions and containers sufficient to prevent pests
or vermin infestation. All other food provided by pet owner shall be stored as required to
maintain sanitary/safe condition and shelf life.

Cats-and Dogs shall be kept in safe clean conditions and treated a manner promoting the
pets’ health, comfort, and wellness consistent with the additional submittals received June
20, 2021, entitled Animal Wellness Plan, which regardingpet-weHness; must be annually
reviewed and approved by Animal Control Officer.

Kennel and facility cleaning shall be conducted as follow; as-eutlinedinMinnesotarules
+721-0520-subpart-5G-The premises, housing facilities, exercise areas, and confinement
areas must be cleaned and disinfected as often as necessary to maintain a clean and sanitary
condition. Animal confinement areas must be cleaned at least once daily. Measures must
be taken to protect animals from being splattered with water or feces and from exposure to
harmful chemicals during cleaning. Bedding, if used, must be kept clean and dry. Outdoor
runs and exercise areas must be kept clean and soiled base material must be replaced as
necessary. Specific cleaning and disinfecting protocols for the facility and exercise areas

must be approved annually by the Animal Control Ofﬁcer

14 OF 39

July 28, 2021
City of Columbus
City Council

34



35

22. Fire and emergency preparedness plan shall be developed and drilled as outlined in
additional materials submitted by applicant and approved by Fire Marshall/Fire Chief and

Animal Control Officer. eenduected—as—outlined—in—additional-materialsubmitted—by
apphieant-onJune 20,2021 ~which-incladed-a Fire-Safety Plan-

23. Dog excrement, urine or other bodily fluids shall be removed from kennels at least once
daily and from indoors and outdoors exercise areas immediately upon elimination, the area
disinfected and the waste disposed of in a manner consistent with approved solid waste
disposal regulations as outlined in the Waste Management Plan received from applicant
and approved by the Animal Control Officer.

25. The dog and-eat daycare and commercial boarding facility may not house an animal or dog;
oreat declared dangerous or potentially dangerous by any jurisdiction.

26. The dog and-eat daycare and deg-and-eat-commercial boarding facility cannot serve as an
impound shelter or rescue facility or house rescued or stray animals or dogs. reseue

b 2 b 2

27. The applicant shall connect to public utilities as required per Section 14-305 no later than

December 31, 2021.F7uly30,2022 priorto September 30,2021
28. One handicapped accessible parking stall and sign shall be located on the Property.

29. The applicant shall bring their property access and parking lot into compliance per
standards outhned in Sectlon TA- 812 no later than December 31, 2021 Dﬁ%te—ﬂc&s—bemg

30. All site lighting shall be downcast and shrouded as required by Columbus Ordinance
Section 7A-813 for outdoor lighting standards.

31. There are to be no hazardous chemicals, gasses, hazardous wastes, fumes, or odors
including that of composting organic material, on the Property as a result of this business,
except for fire extinguishers or other materials required in the Fire/Emergency
Preparedness Plan.

32. Any and all uses allowed in the CUP shall be constructed, maintained, and practiced
consistent with all applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations, including but

15 OF 39

July 28, 2021
City of Columbus
City Council

35



36

not limited to air quality, water quality, noise standards, odor regulations, and proper
animal boarding procedure.

33. The Applicant must maintain valid certification received from all relevant State of
Minnesota regulatory agencies for all permitted uses on the property.

34. Approval of the Conditional Use permit does not absolve the applicant of any other
permitting requirements such as Building, Watershed District, County, etc.

35. The applicant shall reimburse the City for all out-of-pocket expenses incurred in the review
and issuance of the CUP and for all ongoing inspections and enforcement actions required
for the CUP.

36. The CUP, once issued, may be revoked upon a finding by the City Council that the property
and/or use is not in compliance with the conditions for approval of such use, following
notice and hearing.

37. The IUP approved on May 9, 2012, for Jessica Evers on the Property is terminated upon
approval of the CUP.

38. The applicant shall install the required dumpster enclosure as required by Section 7A-813
(C) no later than September 30, 2021.

39. The Animal Control Officer will conduct an inspection in the first six (6) months, if no
citations are noted at this time future inspections will be annual (every year) going forward.

40. A medical emergency plan describing the steps taken in the event of a medical emergency
(i.e., choking, stopped breathing, heavy bleeding) including how the emergency will be
handled, the location the dog is brought if moved, how it will be moved, and owner
notification shall be drafted to be reviewed and approved by the Animal Control Officer

annually.

41. An infection control plan shall be drafted by the applicant and reviewed and approved by
the Animal Control Officer annually.

42. Upon approval of the Conditional Use Permit, the applicant shall be allowed to continue
operations while satisfying conditions of approval, provided the applicant comes into
compliance with al conditions within 12 months of issuance of this Conditional Use Permit.

16 OF 39
July 28, 2021
City of Columbus
City Council

36



37

northwest corner of the freeway corridor. The Planning Commission could
consider some uses to list within the specific districts but to change the districts
from what was presented it would take 9-12 months to amend the
Comprehensive Plan first. Johnson commented that the Planning Commission
debated at length to either create permitted and/or conditional uses and it was
the direction from Planning Commission and Council to go all conditional. Berens
commented on the 2040 Comprehensive Plan noting that it is the guiding
document that brought the Planning Commission and Council to the proposed
documents they are reviewing and discussing today, and that the ordinance
amendment reflects the changes and hard work put in to follow the
Comprehensive Plan.

Motion Wolowski to recommend approval of Chapter 7A Zoning Ordinance Amendment as
presented with addition and/or insertion of the revised Table B. Second King. Motion carried
with King, Berens, Bobick Hanegraaf and Wolowski voting in favor.

This item and Planning Commission recommendation will be further discussed at the upcoming
12-08-2021 City Council meeting.

6. PUBLIC OPEN FORUM Nothing at this time.

7. ASSOCIATE PLANNER’S REPORT

A. Gutknecht had a Subdivision question that was resolved with Mursko prior to the

PC-12-01-2021
City of Columbus

meeting.

Gutknecht presented an update on a site visit he conducted this week at the
Universal Services site, 14045 Lake Drive (or currently known as CST Companies)
stating that the lighting is compliant with the City’s Code and measured the
lumens at the fence line on the north property line at 0.98-foot candles.
Gutknecht received an inquiry regarding a proposed business consisting of pet
training/obedience facility in the Highway Commercial District. Staff would like
to know the Commissioner's thoughts on if this proposed business that consists
of doggy daycare with obedience training and no overnight boarding is similar to
the recently approved Muddy Paws CUP in Land Use. If the Commission agrees
the land uses are the same/similar, Gutknecht and Mursko suggest the
Commission make a motion to include that use in the Highway Commercial
District so that Gutknecht can make the edit prior to Council adoption of the
Chapter 7A Ordinance Amendment. Bobick questioned page 65 of the draft
Ordinance referencing Dog Kennel permits already being allowed in all the
districts. Mursko clarified that there is a difference between a residential kennel
permit as residents need to apply for a 5-year Interim Use Permit verses within
the Commercial District where there are not State regulations. Johnson
explained that in Section 800 under Dog Kennel Permit it already states that they
are allowed in all the general and commercial districts, even if it is not
specifically listed under highway commercial in section 600 or 700. Johnson
suggested if the Commission is not comfortable with allowing Dog Kennel

20f3
37


cityplan
Highlight

cityplan
Highlight

cityplan
Highlight


38

Permits in all the districts, they should clarify at the meeting which districts they
think permit the use. That way staff may make necessary edits to the ordinance.
After discussing the situation further, Johnson noted that it appeared the
Planning Commission was not ready to make a determination and recommended
that they should gut that section of 800 instead. Johnson recommended
Commissioners put a moratorium on Commercial Dog Kennels as described in
Chapter 7A.

Motion Wolowski to recommend a study or a review on Chapter 7A Section 809C: Commercial
Kennels, for a possible moratorium and further review to the City Council. Second King. Motion
carried with King, Berens, Bobick, Hanegraaf and Wolowski voting in favor.

8.

9.

10.

11.

CITY ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT Mursko had nothing to report at this time.

PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBERS’ REPORT Wolowski asked staff if they had additional
information regarding the City of Forest Lake closing Eureka Ave N, the frontage road
around Clear Lake due to maintenance costs. Mursko provided an update that she and
Mayor Preiner spoke with the City of Forest Lake’s Mayor, and he stated that they were in
preliminary discussion about closing the road with no official plans at this time and that the
City of Forest Lake would include Columbus in discussions/meetings moving forward
regarding this road. Hanegraaf thanked staff for placing a garbage can in the City Park.

ATTENDANCE FOR UPCOMING MEETINGS Bobick will be attending the 12-08-2021 City
Council meeting in place of King.

MOTION TO ADJOURN Motion by Berens to adjourn, seconded by King. Motion carried with

Wolowski, Hanegraaf, Bobick, Berens and King voting in favor. Meeting adjourned at
8:36pm.

Respectfully Submitted: Carissa Kranz, Recording Secretary

30f3

PC - 12-01-2021 38
City of Columbus


cityplan
Highlight

cityplan
Highlight


39

9. Planning Commission Report

Commissioner Barb Bobick gave a report on the 12.01.2021 Planning Commission meeting. The
group has been working on updates to Chapter 7A of City Code to align with recent changes to the
Comprehensive Plan. The group held a public hearing on sections 600-800 of the chapter.

During the public hearing, Bruce Miller expressed concern about the lack of permitted uses and
the removal of an overlay district. He felt like those changes will limit the number of
opportunities coming to the City.

There was some question from the group whether there should be a change to Ordinance
7A-807 requiring fencing around the pool by adding covers as an alternative to the fencing.
Leaving this question to the Council for consideration, the Planning Commission
unanimously recommended approval of the changes.

After consideration of the ordinance updates, Associate Planner Ben Gutknecht reported on an
inquiry he received for a dog training business in the freeway district. Most commissioners felt
that type of business did not fit the area, however City ordinances do not clearly outlaw it.
A moratorium on commercial dog boarding was suggested to further study dog training and
boarding facilities as well as recommendations that were made during the review of Muddy Paw's
Conditional Use Permit.

Motion by Hegland to institute a moratorium on commercial dog kennels and training
facilities and to direct the City Attorney to draft a resolution and ordinance
instituting such. Seconded by Logren. Roll call vote; Busch — aye; Hegland — aye;
Mayor Preiner — aye; Logren — aye. Motion carries.

City Planner Dean Johnson spoke to address remarks made during the Planning Commission’s
public hearing on the ordinance amendments. The hearing brought to his attention that the
amendments being approved do not include internet commerce as a conditional use in the
highway commercial district. He believes the removal was a mistake and asked the Council to
consider adding internet commerce back into the list of conditional uses in the district. The
Council agreed this was unintentional and agreed to add it back to the ordinance.

Motion by Hegland to adopt ordinance amendments to City Code Chapter 7A
& Official Zoning Map as indicated, with amendment to Chapter 7A — 807 K. to add
“unless the pool is equipped with an automatic security cover approved by the City.”,
and adding internet commerce as a conditional use in the highway commercial district.
Seconded by Busch. Roll call vote; Busch — aye; Hegland — aye; Mayor Preiner — aye;
Logren — aye. Motion carries.

20F6
December 8, 2021
City of Columbus
City Council

39


cityplan
Highlight


40

Motion by Hegland to approve the Publication Summary of Ordinance 21-10, with the
change to the Community and Senior Center fee to read “TBD”. Seconded by Wagamon.
Roll call vote; Busch — nay; Hegland — aye; Mayor Preiner — aye; Wagamon — aye; Logren —
aye. Motion carries.

15. Hagert Park Land Sale

Assistant to the City Administrator Jessica Hughes explained that City Staff have been working to
sell land which was deeded to the City in 1986. The City recently collected closed bids for the
sale of the property, to be opened during this meeting. Property owners immediately adjacent to
the land for sale were given the opportunity to submit bids for the property, contingent on it being
combined with their own property. The Council set the minimum sale price at $75,000.

Mayor Preiner opened the bids. The first bid was received from Meghan Turcotte for $77,000.
The second bid was from Robert Allee for $80,000. The third bid was from Dennis and Wendy
Lene for $30,000.

Motion by Hegland to accept bids from Meghan Turcotte and Robert Allee and to reject the
bid from Dennis and Wendy Lene for the vacant City-owned property located at PIN # 03-
32-22-34-0006. Seconded by Wagamon. Roll call vote; Busch — aye; Hegland — aye; Mayor
Preiner — aye; Wagamon — aye; Logren — aye. Motion carries.

Motion by Hegland to accept the $80,000 offer from Robert Allee for the City-owned
property located at PIN # 03-32-22-34-0006, subject to legal review and preparation of
documents. Seconded by Busch. Roll call vote; Busch — aye; Hegland — aye; Mayor Preiner
— aye; Wagamon — aye; Logren — aye. Motion carries.

Griffith said that next steps are to review the title, prepare the deed, and complete a certificate of
real estate value. Once those are complete the closing date will be scheduled.

D. STAFF AND CONSULTANT REPORTS
16. Engineer Report

Camp 3 Road Closure Results

City Engineer Kevin Bittner reported that results from the Camp 3 Road closure survey and traffic
counts will be presented to the City Council at their 01.11.2022 workshop by Anoka County
representatives.

17. Attorney Report

Commercial Kennels Moratorium

Based on direction from a previous City Council meeting, Griffith prepared an interim ordinance
and resolution ordering a study of the City’s commercial dog kennel ordinance. Hegland asked if
training can be added to the study. Griffith said he will add that to the ordinance and resolution.

8 OF 11
December 29, 2021
City of Columbus
City Council

40


cityplan
Highlight


41

Logren asked what the impact of the moratorium will be on City Staff. Mursko explained that
staff will defer applications over the moratorium, so the impact will depend on the volume of
applications received.

Busch asked if the moratorium would affect current businesses? Griffith replied that it would not.
Existing CUPs will continue even if they are not legally conforming with the changes being made.
He added that the ordinance contains a hardship waiver that the Council could choose to apply on
a case-by-case basis.

Motion by Mayor Preiner to approve Resolution 21-29, a resolution to order a study for the
regulation of pet boarding, training, and grooming. Seconded by Hegland. Roll call vote;
Busch — nay; Hegland — aye; Mayor Preiner — aye; Wagamon — aye; Logren — aye. Motion
carries.

Motion by Mayor Preiner to adopt Ordinance 21-11, an interim ordinance establishing a
moratorium on the issuance of permits for small animal indoor boarding, training,
grooming, or day care within the City of Columbus. Seconded by Hegland. Roll call vote;
Busch — nay; Hegland — aye; Mayor Preiner — aye; Wagamon — aye; Logren — aye. Motion
carries.

18. City Council Member’s Report

Council Member Logren

No report.
Mayor Preiner
No report.

Council Member Hegland

Hegland recognized and thanked Commissioners Bobick and Wolowski for their excellent
service to the City of Columbus on the Planning Commission.

Personnel Committee Report

Hegland presented a Personnel Committee report regarding the completion of Pam Wolowski and
Barb Bobick’s Planning Commission terms. Wolowski has not asked to be reappointed while
Bobick has.

Motion by Hegland to reappoint Barb Bobick to the Planning Commission for a three-year
term ending on December 31, 2024. Seconded by Mayor Preiner. Roll call vote; Busch —
aye; Hegland — aye; Mayor Preiner — aye; Wagamon — aye; Logren — aye. Motion carries.

Hegland continued by recommending the approval of a cost-of-living increase for City employees
as well as step increases as indicated in the report.

Motion by Hegland to approve the 3% cost-of-living and 2022 step increases for City
employee pay rates as presented effective December 30, 2021. Seconded by Wagamon. Roll

90F 11
December 29, 2021
City of Columbus
City Council

41


cityplan
Highlight


42

COLUMBUS

Rural Nature. Urban Access.

To: Planning Commission and City Council Members
From: Frank Koenen, Associate Planner

Date: November 10, 2022

Re: Pet Boarding/Grooming Moratorium Study Questions

In 2021 a commercial facility named Muddy Paws Play and Stay categorizing itself as “doggy daycare”
applied for a conditional use permit in the freeway district. During the application process it was found
that businesses categorized as “doggy daycare” was not regulated by the state in the same manner that
commercial dog kennels are regulated, and instead local municipalities are required to set their own code
regarding such facilities.

After another similar business (dog training — dropping off for day concept) inquired about potentially
opening a facility in the freeway district, it was found that the business use was not listed in the zoning
code. However, that raised concerns that the existing zoning code was not clear about the impacts and
effects of the establishment, use or operation of small animal indoor boarding, grooming, or day care
facilities on the health, safety, and welfare of the city. This resulted in December 2021 the passing of an
ordinance establishing a moratorium on the issuance of permits for small animal indoor boarding,
grooming, or day care within the City of Columbus. In turn, the city council passed a resolution to order a
study for the regulation of pet boarding/grooming.

This will be the first meeting of the commercial dog kennels moratorium where the group can evaluate
how to update and clarify the city’s commercial dog kennel ordinance.

First, based on the language of the moratorium, these were the primary policy questions that the Council
intended to be answered. Please note, that we will not be answering these questions in the first meeting,
but instead clarifying these are the questions officials want studied and if additional questions are
warranted:
1) Which zoning districts should these facilities be located?
2) What new controls should be implemented governing Pet Boarding.and Grooming provide
enough oversight and regulation of uses?
3) What regulations should be implemented for potential nuisances (concerning the health, safety,
and welfare of the community)?

16319 Kettle River Boulevard, Columbus, MN 55025
651.464.3120 Twin Cities 651.464.5922 Fax

www.ColumbusNIN.com

42



43

e Do the Planning Commission and City Council believe these are the primary policy questions-
Yes or No?

e Are there additional central policy questions?

e Should any of these policy questions be removed?

Second, what additional concerns are there regarding the following:

1) Are there any specific commercial zoning districts where you believe these facilities should be
prohibited?

2) What specific nuisance concerns (i.e. sights, sounds, odors) does the Planning Commission and
City Council have for these types of businesses? (Please name 2-3 concerns)

3) What type of design standards are the top concerns of the Planning Commission and City
Council? (Please name 2-3 design standards)

4) What kind of controls do the Planning Commission and City Council believe are lacking in the
existing pet boarding and grooming regulations of uses? (Please think of 2-3 potential controls,
feel free to bring examples from other communities)

We will not be going in depth on these subjects at this meeting, this is a launching point for the current
staff to prioritize working on the ordinance. After reviewing the tasks from this initial discussion, staff
and consultants will focus on researching standards for commercial doggy daycare, pet groom, boarding,
and training facilities. We will continue the discussions more in depth at future Planning Commission
meetings. The planned schedule is as follows.

What’s Next

December 7- Land Use

December 21- Lack of Existing Controls
January 4- Nuisance Concerns

January 18- Wrap-up/Loose Ends/Final Review

These meetings will be a part of Planning Commission meeting agendas.

43



44

November 16, 2022
Feedback from PC and Council

First, based on the language of the moratorium, these were the primary policy questions that the Council
intended to be answered:

1)

2)

3)

Which land use districts should these facilities be located and what sort of design standards
should they have?

e Commercial (B Berens)

Do the existing controls governing Pet Boarding and Grooming provide enough oversight and
regulation of uses?

What regulations should be implemented for potential nuisances (concerning the health, safety,
and welfare of the community)?

Do the Planning Commission and City Council believe these are the primary policy questions-
o Yes or No? (B Berens)

Are there additional central policy questions?
o Training

Should any of these policy questions be removed?
o No (B Berens)

Second, what additional concerns are there regarding the following:

1)

2)

3)

4)

Are there any specific commercial zoning districts where you believe these facilities should be
prohibited?

o Yes (B Berens)
What specific nuisance concerns (i.e. sights, sounds, odors) does the Planning Commission and
City Council have for these types of businesses? (Please name 2-3 concerns)

o Mainly sounds/odors (B Berens)
What type of design standards are the top concerns of the Planning Commission and City
Council? (Please name 2-3 design standards)

o Nuisance control, following state standards and how do they fit into a particular area (B

Berens)

What kind of controls do the Planning Commission and City Council believe are lacking in the
existing pet boarding and grooming regulations of uses? (Please think of 2-3 potential controls,
feel free to bring examples from other communities)

o Same as 3 (B Berens)

16319 Kettle River Boulevard, Columbus, MN 55025
651.464.3120 Twin Cities 651.464.5922 Fax

www.ColumbusNIN.com

44



45

To:
From:
Date:
Re:

COLUMBUS

Rural Nature. Urban Access.

Planning Commission Members

Frank Koenen, Associate Planner

January 27, 2022

Commercial Pet/Small Animal Uses Study

At the February 1 Planning Commission meeting, staff will be presenting to the Planning Commission a
review on the City’s study of Commercial Pet/Small Animal Uses. Due to several new members joining
the Planning Commission after the previous meeting in which the study was discussed, this meeting will
be a review of the study progress to this point. Enclosed in the packet is background material. Please be

familiar with this material as staff will reference this material during the presentation on February 1 and
will take questions regarding the study to this point.

Please find enclosed in this packet and enclosure:

Resolution No. 21-29 — Resolution to Order a Study for Regulation of Pet Boarding/Grooming
Ordinance No. 21-11 — An Interim Ordinance Establishing a Moratorium on the Issuance of
Permits for Small Animal Indoor Boarding, Grooming, or Day Care within the City of Columbus
Minnesota eLicensing Website for Kennel Licenses, which states that dog training and boarding
facilities are not a part of the licensing process for kennels.

Minutes for July 28, 2021 City Council Meeting in which a Doggy Daycare business (Muddy
Paws) was approved.

Minutes for the December 1, 2021 Planning Commission Meeting. The Associate Planner’s
report discussed a dog training business in the Highway Commercial District. The City Planner
suggested that the Planning Commission should recommend a moratorium those types of
businesses if they did not feel comfortable with a then proposed zoning ordinance regarding
Commercial Dog Kennels. Planning Commission voted to recommend the moratorium to the City
Council.

Minutes for the December 8, 2021 City Council Meeting. Planning Commission made a
recommendation to adopt the moratorium voted on during the December 1 Planning Commission
meeting because City ordinances do not clearly outlaw dog training businesses in.that district, and
a moratorium should be instituted. City Council voted in favor of instituting'a moratorium and
directed staff to draft a resolution and ordinance instituting suchs

Minutes for the December 29, 2021 City Council Meeting: Resolution 21-29 and Ordinance No.
21-11 were approved.

16319 Kettle River Boulevard, Columbus, MN 55025
651.464.3120 Twin Cities 651.464.5922 Fax

www.ColumbusNIN.com

45



46

e Memo sent for November 10, 2022 Joint Planning Commission and City Council Meeting which
summarized the reason and history of the moratorium and study. Additionally, staff posed to the
City Council and Planning Commission several policy questions so staff could focus on research
and guide future discussions.

e Enclosure — PowerPoint for the February 1, 2023 Planning Commission Meeting which will
review the background and progress of the study for new Planning Commission members.

After reviewing the background and progress of this study and taking questions from Planning
Commission members at the February 1, 2023 Planning Commission meeting. We will renew discussions

at the Joint City Council and Planning Commission February 15, 2023 meeting.

Please feel free to reach out with questions.

46



47

CITY OF COLUMBUS
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
INTERACTIVE TECHNOLOGY MEETING FORMAT
STATUTES SECTION 13D.021
2-1-2023

The 2-1-2023 Planning Commission meeting for the City of Columbus was called to order at 6:00 PM by
Chair Ron Hanegraaf at the City Hall. Present were Planning Commission members Ron Hanegraaf, Barb
Bobick, Lynn Carver-Quinn, Bethany Barrette, and Frank Ramisch, City Administrator Elizabeth Mursko,
Associate Planner Frank Koenen, and Planning and Zoning Permit Tech Ella Giefer.

In attendance via interactive technology was an unidentified phone.

In attendance in person were Myron Angel, Cindy Angel, Jesse Preiner, and Janet Hegland.

The meeting was held in an interactive technology meeting format.

1.

CALL TO ORDER — REGULAR MEETING - 6:00 PM
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
INTRODUCTION — NEW PLANNING COMMISSIONER Lynn Carver-Quinn

MEETING AGENDA Motion Bobick to approve agenda as written. Second Ramisch. Motion carried
with Ramisch, Barrette, Hanegraaf, Bobick, and Carver-Quinn voting in favor.

JANUARY 18 2023 PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES Motion Hanegraaf to approve
the January 18 2023 Planning Commission meeting minutes. Second Bobick. Motion carried with
Barrette, Hanegraaf, Bobick, and Ramisch voting in favor. Abstain Carver-Quinn.

JANUARY 18 2023 PUBLIC HEARING MINUTES- 5551 PINE ST NE KENNEL INTERIM USE PERMIT
(EDWARD LAUDERBAUGH) Motion Bobick to approve the January 18 2023 Public Hearing
minutes. Second Barrette. Motion carried with Barrette, Hanegraaf, Bobick, and Ramisch voting
in favor. Abstain Carver-Quinn.

COMMERCIAL PET/SMALL ANIMAL USES STUDY (PAGES 1-29 AND ENCLOSURE PAGES E1-E12)
At this time a discussion was held regarding the Commercial Pet/Small Animal Uses Study.
Koenen gave a background of the moratorium being requested by the City Council in December
of 2021 and the process of the study. Koenen stated that the moratorium and study were called
for because there were concerns that had come up during a CUP application for an animal
daycare business and during an inquiry for a dog training business that the Planning Commission
and City Council did not feel they had time to address. Koenen reviewed the feedback to the
previous study questions that had been addressed and the additional concerns he would ask the
Planning Commissioners to discuss. Carver-Quinn discussed her experience with dog training
facilities and stated that she did not believe there was a suitable location in Columbus in the
commercial zone. Barrette suggested adding verbiage regarding a plan for escaped animals, and
that the location of potential uses may have an impact on how safe escaped animals in the area
would be. Mursko stated that the Planning Commission had the option of including small animal
uses as a residential zoned business use. Bobick asked if requiring animals to be chipped was

47


cityplan
Highlight

cityplan
Highlight


48

10.

11.

something that could be included, which Mursko said is something that could potentially be
addressed as part of a license application, but not as part of a zoning use. Hegland asked for
clarification on if the Commercial Pet/Small Animal Uses Moratorium had expired, to which
Mursko answered that the moratorium was in place until June 2023 but that the City Council had
the option of ending it early. Koenen stated that the Commercial Pet/Small Animal Uses Study
would be discussed again at the February 15" joint meeting.

PUBLIC OPEN FORUM Preiner welcomed the three new Planning Commissioners that had
recently joined and encouraged them to reach out if they needed anything.

PLANNING COMMISSIONER’S REPORT Nothing at this time.

ASSOCIATE PLANNER’S REPORT Koenen reviewed his findings regarding billboards on 135W and
that he was in contact with the builder and still working on ensuring the conditions of their IUP
would be met. Giefer reviewed the updates made to the Planning Commissioner’s handbooks.

ADJOURN Motion Carver-Quinn to adjourn. Second Hanegraaf. Motion carried with Ramisch,
Barrette, Hanegraaf, Bobick, and Carver-Quinn voting in favor. Meeting closed at 6:49.

Mo Gcfer

Respectfully Submitted by Recording Secretary Ella Giefer

48



49

COLUMBUS

Rural Nature. Urban Access.

To: Planning Commission Members

From: Frank Koenen, Associate Planner

Date: February 10, 2023

Re: Commercial Small Animal Uses Definitions

At the previous Planning Commission meeting, City Staff was tasked with creating definitions
for animal boarding, animal day care, animal grooming, and animal training. Many definitions
for commercial small animal services used in other cities overlap veterinary and animal
hospitals. The existing Columbus, MN definition for “Veterinary Animal Hospital or Clinic” was
added for context. However, “Veterinary Animal Hospital or Clinic” is not a part of the
questions for the Commercial Small Animal Uses study.

City Staff proposes the following definitions to the Planning Commission. Following each
definition is the city that was used for the ordinance language. Additional definitions from other
municipalities in Minnesota and Wisconsin can be found after the proposed definitions for
Columbus.

Proposed Columbus Definitions

Animal Boarding — A place kept or maintained for the care and socializing of live dogs or cats
for any amount of time by a person other than the owner of the live animal. Animal boarding
does not include facilities that provide breeding of animals, selling of animals, or facilities whose
primary source of revenue is licensed veterinarian services. (St. Paul, MN)

Animal Day Care — A place that provides care of dogs and other domestic pets for periods of less
than twelve (12) hours a day. (Madison, WI)

Animal Grooming Facility — A place where domestic animals are bathed, clipped, or combed,
including boarding for not more than forty-eight (48) hours incidental to the grooming services.
(Madison, WI)

Animal Training Facility — A place providing training of domestic animals on a commercial
basis. This term includes the boarding of domestic animals_fof not more than forty-cight (48)
hours incidental to the training services provided. (Milwaukee, WI)

16319 Kettle River Boulevard, Columbus, MN 55025
651.464.3120 Twin Cities 651.464.5922 Fax

www.ColumbusNIN.com

49



50

Veterinary Animal Hospital or Clinic - A place used for the care, diagnosis, and treatment of
sick, ailing, infirm, or injured animals and those who are in need of medical or surgical attention,
and may include overnight accommodations on the Premises for treatment, observation and/or
recuperation. It may also include boarding that is incidental to the principal activity or use.
(Existing Columbus, MN)

50



51

APPENDIX
St. Paul

Pet grooming facility means any facility engaged in the practice of pet grooming that is not a
"pet shop," as defined in section 347.02 of the Legislative Code. (Sec. 382.02)

Animal boarding means and includes every place kept or maintained for the care and
socializing of live dogs or cats for any amount of time by a person other than the owner of the
live animal. An animal boarding facility may also offer animal day care. Animal boarding does
not include facilities that provide breeding of animals, selling of animals, or facilities whose
primary source of revenue is licensed veterinarian services. (Sec. 348.02)

Animal day care means and includes every place kept or maintained for the care, grooming,
training, exercising, and socializing of live dogs or cats for less than twenty-four (24) hours per
day by a person other than the owner of the live animal. Animal day care does not include
facilities that provide animal boarding, breeding or selling of animals, or facilities whose primary
source of revenue is licensed veterinarian services. (Sec. 348.02)

Commercial animal day care means any animal day care establishment that is located in a
building other than a residence. Home occupation animal day care means any animal day care
establishment that is located in a residential building. (Sec. 348.02)

A home occupation animal day care can only be operated by a person residing in the building.
A home occupation animal day care can care for no more than three animals at one time
including any animals that are owned/kept by the resident/licensee. (Sec. 348.02)

Veterinary Clinic. An establishment for the routine examination, medical or surgical treatment
and care of domestic household pets generally with overnight boarding facilities for pets in care
but without kenneling of animals.

Standards and conditions: All activity shall take place within completely enclosed buildings with
soundproofing and odor control; outdoor kennels are prohibited. In traditional neighborhood and
B2 business districts, there shall be no kenneling of animals not under medical treatment. (Sec.
65.536)

Minneapolis

Animal boarding. A facility or service where animals are kept or maintained (day or
overnight), for the care, training, exercising and/or socializing by a person other than the
owner of the animals for a fee. Animal boarding may include incidental grooming, dog

51



52

walkers or training services. Animal boarding does not include facilities that provide breeding
of animals, selling of animals, or facilities whose primary source of revenue is licensed
veterinarian services. (Sec. 520.160)

Oak Park Heights

I. “Commercial Kennel” means a kennel where dogs are bred and/or sold for re-sale,
individually or in litter lots, whether or not any of these animals are also kept for personal use
and where the business may be a primary source of income. Commercial kennels are also places
where dogs are boarded, groomed, or trained for a fee. (Sec. 601.01)

4. Animal care services to include daycare, grooming and other related services, and limited
overnight boarding of animals as a yearly administrative permit subject to review and approval
of the Zoning Administrator and subject to the following conditions: a. Overnight boarding of an
animal is limited to no more than fourteen consecutive nights. b. Adequate analysis and
provisions are made to resolve issues related to provision of water and electricity to the site and
the demand for City services. No use shall be allowed that will exceed the City’s ability to
provide utility, police, fire, administrative or other services to the site. c. The facility shall not be
open to the public between the hours of 10:00 PM and 5:00 AM unless otherwise allowed by
formal action of the City Council. d. Provisions are made to control and reduce noise in
accordance with Section 401.15.B.11 of this Ordinance. Animal noise shall not create issues for
adjacent properties or for tenants within a multi-tenant building. e. All animal waste shall be
immediately disposed of in sealed containers and removed from the site on a regular basis so as
not to create issues with odor. Odor from the business shall not create issues for adjacent
properties or tenants within a multi-tenant building. f. Animals shall be leashed at all times they
are outside of the building. g. The owner of the property must additionally approve the
placement of the facilities by co-signing any required application; if such vendor is not directly
related to the owner, the owner shall also be subject to additional enforcement actions should the
vendor not comply with requirements herein or within this Ordinance. h. The City may revoke
the Animal Care Services Permit at any time should the operations become a public nuisance or
hazard as defined by the City. i. All signing and informational or visual communication devices
shall be minimized and shall be in compliance with Section 401.15.G of this Ordinance. 30-5 j.
The provisions of Section 401.03.A.7 of this Ordinance are considered and satisfactorily met
(Sec. 401.30.D. Accessory Uses)

Veterinary Clinic: Those uses concerned with the diagnosis, treatment and medical care of
animals including animal or pet hospitals. (Sec. 401.02B. Definitions)

52



53

Bloomington

COMMERCIAL ANIMAL ESTABLISHMENT. Any business that breeds, raises, sells,
boards, distributes or exhibits animals for entertainment or educational purposes including, but
not limited to, kennels, aquariums, pet shops, petting zoos, riding schools or stables, zoological
parks, or performing animal exhibitions as licensed under § 14.94. (Sec. 12.91)

PET SERVICES FACILITY. A business establishment that provides any of the following
services or retail activity either individually or in combination, for pets and domestic animals:
sales, animal sales, veterinary care, animal hospital, short-term daily care, training classes,
boarding and grooming. (Sec. 12.91)

Maplewood

Kennel means any place which operates to provide for boarding, training, confining or otherwise
caring for or providing service to dogs, cats or any other domestic pets. This definition includes
any place where more than two female dogs, cats or other domestic pets are kept for breeding
purposes. (Sec. 10-371)

(9) Veterinary or grooming clinic where there are no outside kennels or storage. (Sec. 44-427
— Neighborhood Commercial Permitted Uses)

Madison

Animal Boarding Facility, Kennel, Animal Shelter . Any lot or premises on which dogs, cats
and other household pets are kept, boarded or raised for sale. (Sec. 28.211)

Animal Day Care. An establishment that provides care of dogs and other domestic pets for
periods of less than twelve (12) hours a day. (Sec. 28.211)

Animal Grooming Facility. An establishment where domestic animals are bathed, clipped, or
combed, including boarding for not more than forty-eight (48) hours incidental to the grooming
services. (Sec. 28.211)

Green Bay

Grooming service means any business where a person performs cosmetic or cleaning services
on animals for compensation two or more times in a two-year period. (Sec. 6-1)

53



54

(7) Service Businesses.

Animal hospital or veterinary clinic means an establishment providing medical and surgical
treatment of domestic animals, including grooming and boarding for not more than 30 days if
incidental to the medical care. (Multiple locations, including Sec. 44-250)

Animal boarding facility, kennel in all districts except the L-1 District.(1)Animal boarding
facilities shall be required to be soundproofed to ensure that the noise levels associated with the
use do not interfere with the health, welfare, and safety of adjoining properties.(2)All runs,
exercise areas, and enclosures/kennels shall be located within a completely enclosed building.
(Multiple locations, including Sec. 44-250)

Animal grooming establishment in all districts except the L-1 District.(1)Animal grooming
establishments shall be required to be soundproofed to ensure that the noise levels associated
with the use do not interfere with the health, welfare, and safety of adjoining properties.(2)All
runs, exercise areas, and enclosures/kennels shall be located within a completely enclosed
building. (Multiple locations, including Sec. 44-250)

Animal hospital or veterinary clinic means an establishment providing medical and surgical
treatment of domestic animals, including grooming and boarding for not more than 30 days if
incidental to the medical care. (Multiple locations, including Sec. 44-250)

Milwaukee

ANIMAL BOARDING FACILITY means an establishment in which more than 3 dogs or 3
cats, or any combination thereof, over the age of 5 months may be kept for boarding, breeding,
safekeeping, convalescence, humane disposal, placement, sale or sporting purposes. This is the
same type of facility referred to as a “kennel” in ch. 78. (Sec 295-201)

ANIMAL GROOMING OR TRAINING FACILITY means an establishment providing
bathing, trimming or training of domestic animals on a commercial basis. This term includes the
boarding of domestic animals for a maximum period of 48 hours incidental to the grooming or
training services provided. (Sec 295-201)

ANIMAL HOSPITAL/CLINIC means an establishment providing medical and surgical
treatment of domestic animals, including grooming and boarding for not more than 30 days if
incidental to the medical care. This term includes an animal crematorium. (Sec 295-201)

54



55

COLUMBUS

Rural Nature. Urban Access.

To: Planning Commission

From: Frank Koenen, Associate Planner

Date: February 10, 2023

Re: Commercial Small Animal Uses Study Questions

In 2021 a commercial facility categorizing itself as “doggy daycare” was granted a conditional use permit
by the City Council in the freeway district. After a dog training business inquired about potentially
opening a facility in the freeway district, it was found that the use was not listed in the zoning code. That
raised concerns that the existing zoning code was not clear about the impacts and effects of the
establishment, use or operation of small animal indoor boarding, grooming, training, or day care uses. In
December 2021, an ordinance and resolution were passed establishing a moratorium on commercial small
animal use and ordering a study for the regulation of commercial small animal uses.

Initial discussions took place on commercial small animal uses at a Joint Meeting of the Planning
Commission and the City Council in November 2022. However, new members joined the Planning
Commission after the initial discussion and were introduced to the moratorium and study at the February
1, 2023 Planning Commission meeting.

After the presentation, Council Member Hegland raised questions about the city’s licensing responsibility
for the businesses. There were concerns that the Animal Control Officer would not have the workload
capacity to adequately enforce licensing rules to safeguard the health, safety, and welfare of the animals
and the city. Those concerns were raised again at the February 8, 2023 City Council meeting.
Additionally, City Council noted that the Animal Control Officer had made clear that they had a limited
workload capacity. City Council questioned if the city desired hiring another person if that would be
required to adequately license the businesses.

The City Council agreed the city’s capacity to adequately license the businesses would need to be
answered. City Staff was directed by City Council to prepare finding of fact for the questions posed in the
moratorium, and present the findings at the Joint Planning Commission and City Council meeting on
March 1-2023. At that meeting, a study report will be prepared discussing the licensing requirements the
city would have. Professional Staff will present a draft ordinance for the Planning Commission and City
Council.

Please feel free to contact me with any questions.

16319 Kettle River Boulevard, Columbus, MN 55025
651.464.3120 Twin Cities 651.464.5922 Fax

www.ColumbusNIN.com

55



	Appendix Commercial Small Animal Uses.pdf
	21-29 Resolution to Order a Study for Regulation of Pet Boarding-Grooming
	COLUMBUS - Interim Ordinance for Pet Boarding Day Care Moratorium (2021)
	2021-06-02_PC_Minutes
	2021-06-09_MIN_CC
	2021-06-23_MIN_CC
	2021-07-14_MIN_CityCouncil
	2021-07-28_MIN_CC
	2021-12-01_MIN_PC
	2021-12-08_MIN_CC
	2021-12-29_MIN_CC
	2022-10-14 (F)_MEMO_Staff to PC-CC - Feedback Pet Boarding&Grooming
	2022-11-10 (F)_MEMO_Staff to PC-CC - Meeting 1
	2022-02-01 (F)_MEMO_Staff to PC-CC - Review Meeting
	2023-02-10_MEMO_Staff to PC_Definitions
	2023-02-10_MEMO_Staff to PC_Study Questions
	2023 Draft Small Animal Facilities Ordinance Amendments.pdf
	SECTION I. Chapter 7A, Article II, Section 7A-201. Words and Phrases Defined, of the Columbus Code of Ordinances is hereby amended as follows:
	SECTION II.  Chapter 7A, Article VI and VII, Section 7A-600 Official Zoning Map of the Columbus Code of Ordinances is hereby amended by adding the following at the end of the list of approved zoning districts:
	SECTION 7A-663. MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL MIXED USE (MU-M) DISTRICT CONDITIONAL USES.
	SECTION 7A-673. MIXED USE HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (MU-H) DISTRICT CONDITIONAL USES.
	SECTION 7A-683. COMMUNITY COMMERCIAL (CC) DISTRICT CONDITIONAL USES.
	SECTION 7A-723. GENERAL BUSINESS (GB) DISTRICT CONDITIONAL USES.
	SECTION 7A-733. LIGHT INDUSTRIAL (LI) DISTRICT CONDITIONAL
	SECTION 7A-743. COMMERCIAL/INDUSTRIAL (C/I) DISTRICT CONDITIONAL USES.
	SECTION 7A-746. COMMERCIAL/INDUSTRIAL LIGHT (C/I-LIGHT) DISTRICT CONDITIONAL USES.
	SECTION IV. Chapter 7A, Article VIII, Section 7A-809. Dog Kennels, Subsections B. and C., of the Columbus Code of Ordinances are hereby amended to read:
	SECTION V. Chapter 7A, Article VIII, Section 7A-812. L. of the Columbus Code of Ordinances is hereby amended as follows:

	SECTION 7A-820. PERFORMANCE STANDARDS FOR LANDSCAPING.





